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Financial Highlights

(B 5 B i BF 91 » LA B F T 21| 8~ Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars thousands unless otherwise specified)

+/(-)
HE
change 2007 2006

K& R Results of Operations
B Turnover -0.9% 1,022,818 1,032,188
EH Gross profit -1.0% 631,991 638,223
EFE Gross margin - 61.8% 61.8%
&2 a7 Profit from operations -25.9% 120,171 162,199
48 Al 3R Operating margin -25.5% 11.7% 15.7%
PAN/NIS B Profit attributable to equity

B B FEAG A shareholders of the Company -27.0% 118,121 161,913
a0 R & Net profit margin -26.8% 11.5% 15.7%
f& & F — ZE AR Earnings per share — basic -26.7% $0.77 $1.05
f& & F — #5E Earnings per share — diluted N/A N/A $1.04
& B 2 Dividend per share - $0.45 $0.45
B 7 AR R Financial Position
BEEBREEZRE Cash generated from operations +8.1% 121,477 112,324
He RIRITHER Cash and bank deposits less

BEHIRITE R short-term bank loans

KiE T and overdrafts +12.5% 137,283 121,993
MENEEFEE Net current assets +1.5% 270,956 266,970
% 3 #E &= Shareholders’ equity +6.7% 727,681 681,829
% 3 4 %5 [ 2R Return on shareholders’ equity -31.6% 16.2% 23.7%
e HEBERAFTHK0I%EBE10.228E T ° . Turnover declined by 0.9% to HK$1,022.8 million from last year.
o (REESE R B 1202187 0 B EFE N K25.9% ° . Profit from operations was HK$120.2 million, a decrease of 25.9% as compared

with last year.
. ANE SR EELEZNABBE1181ETL » & . Profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company was HK$118.1 million,
KEFETHK27.0% - a decrease of 27.0% from last year.

2006/07 Al R%zﬁ‘
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Chairman’s Statement

SEER

REBHEE -_ZTZT+F=ZAF=+—
AIEFEZEEREMTITHREBE
1,022,818,000L (=TT R F B
1,032,188,0007T) ° ANA Al = R E (L
SRR B27% 2 B 118,121,0007T (&
TN - B #161,913,0000T) ©

Ik B

EERERRBR-BELEAR TN
AEM-2BT2MERRBFAS LR
BEEBRE-TTEF=A=+-AL

FEZRBRETERKRERAEK032T
(ZZEZTRNF - BE0327L) » WERKE

BB S5 AB49,226,000T (ZF
T N4 ¢ B H49,490,0007T) 2 K BRRR B
EHBER _ZEZELF A +jLEI_%H;@_
RZAHARRETFTR _ZETLF LA
THEH—RIARFBRERMZZE -

XKk EE

BEKXEERTHSEE
KEBZZLEBRBEE - #HLE K EH
R TEMHBEURAPEME - K=
ZELF=—AE  AEBZ2HEAEER
EITH TR ERFZAREBEME
Bl Aquascutum * Ashworth + Guy
Laroche * £ %0 88 M Charles Jourdan ©
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YGME ZHR

Chan Sui Kau
Chairman of YGM Trading Limited

NOEY

Group Results

Turnover of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2007 decreased
slightly to HK$1,022,818,000 (2006: HK$1,032,188,000). Profit
attributable to equity shareholders of the Company decreased by 27%
to HK$118,121,000 (2006: HK$161,913,000).

Dividends

The Directors have resolved to recommend the payment of a final
dividend of HK 32 cents (2006: HK 32 cents) per ordinary share for
the year ended 31 March 2007 at the forthcoming annual general
meeting to be held on Tuesday, 18 September 2007. The final dividend
amounting to HK$49,226,000 (2006: HK$49,499,000), if approved
by the shareholders, is expected to be paid on or around Wednesday,
19 September 2007 to those shareholders whose names appear on
the register of members of the Company on Monday, 10 September
2007.

Review of Operations

Garment retail and marketing

The Group’s core business is the retail, wholesale and marketing of
fashion apparel, mainly in the Greater China Region. As of the end of
March 2007, the Group’s brand portfolio consists of five distinct brands
serving a wide spectrum of customer segments, namely Aquascutum,
Ashworth, Guy Laroche, Michel René and Charles Jourdan.



Guv Laroche

Guy Laroche BE B HABRERIE - ISEEHRT R - MmIEHEE B IRERFT KEIGuy Larochef? 19565
RISz > W91 EEREHA KA KRR EEEEE - MEARTURBLENBERGKREME R  BEZEE
HELZERBEMNTER © Guy LarocheIIRER AT RMEE » BREFY - REERESRELRRKZZHE
Mg °

AEEEMA2004F A Guy Larochemhg » WREIFEEBRIEEE ° Guy LarocheZ B EmMNNRIEREM
St o

Guy Laroche is a renowned French label that has long been recognised by its signature elegant style. Established
in 1956 by Guy Laroche himself, the brand launched its first ready-to-wear collection in 1961. The brand is well
known for its form-fitting cuttings, accentuating female’s bodyline appeal, and thus it has been popular among
famous actresses and celebrities. Guy Laroche designs are for sophisticated, contemporary and elegant ladies
with an appreciation for French style.

The Group acquired Guy Laroche in 2004 and the first ladies fashion shop in Hong Kong opened in the same year.
The brand has licensees for various product categories all over the world.
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Chairman’s Statement

X% MEE (|

KXEERTHERE (E)
Aquascutum
REE RO EF E AT BN 1E R
13 P EG_YYtifﬂ
Aquascutumft E /BRI E 1T T —
RS T HNE /E&*Z’E
HMmtmEdE MEREE NEH
KRB AN BB RFIRAEH{E
EA47RIPI T -

Ashworth

R_ETLF-AK AEEREF
BohEA  RFIERFESHEK
Z63EPI™T - FA - AEBEFHE
m/%};ﬁﬁiﬁ?&F‘Z%ﬂ TR &
SHRRAMHFFIM - ZEE S B RR
ﬁﬁuuﬁ%ﬁfﬁ%lZmiﬂ%ﬁP%ﬁ%iE °

Guy Laroche

REBE R AR ZEME AL G b8 & 8H
LEEmAm e AEBERERMK
BEPEMSZERMESER -
FA - AEBCOIELERRE - B
A BAERAMEREETER
i e

BHEE

RZZEZLF=AK  ~5ERE
A BF FEAH KA ELENM
MM - ZmBEARAEEZEAm
e AEEBREAEZEAR  BE
mEERRAR - IR -

Charles Jourdan
AEBRBPREA - BEF - aEK
ZEEEI7TEPT BAREET
2 MEEEE -

Guy Laroche Paris

RNEE -+ 8 8 Guy Laroche b 2 2 B g 12
=R #E B KA B M a5 6,044,000 T (=
TE A 6,3850008T) ¢ FEATI AR
BT RS - moAREB D TS Ty A E LT
& ° Guy Laroche Paris7F 2 BN 9 #8 Guy
Laroche” B4R E M @ EEEHBE - RZE
TLFZF 0 ARREBRRER 2 BK
B WA REE S ANZIBDHER - 78
T 8 W SR TB 2 H0R 38 B 1811,889,000K

ﬁ o
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Review of Operations (continued)

Garment retail and marketing (continued)
Aquascutum

We have added 13 outlets in Mainland China during the year
under review. In March 2007, Aquascutum held a successful
party in Shanghai hosting the famous James Bond movie star
Mr. Pierce Brosnan. We operated a total of 147 outlets in
Mainland China, Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan.

Ashworth

As of the end of March 2007, the Group operated 63 outlets in
Hong Kong, Mainland China, Macau and Thailand. During
the year, the Group acquired the right to market in Taiwan and
4 new outlets were opened in Taiwan. This American golf wear
brand continues to grow in our markets.

Guy Laroche

The Group markets ladies fashion under this brand in the Greater
China Region. Losses were recorded as we had not been able
to deliver products suitable for the Chinese market. Efforts were
made during the year to hire a French designer with specific
responsibilities for the Mainland China market.

Michel René

As of the end of March 2007, we operated 94 outlets in Hong
Kong, Macau, Mainland China and Taiwan. This is our house
brand and we will invest more resources to modernise and
expand this brand.

Charles Jourdan

The Group operated 17 outlets in Mainland China, Hong Kong,
Taiwan and Thailand. Losses were recorded as we had not
achieved enough sales volume.

Guy Laroche Paris

Global royalty and related income from licensing the Guy Laroche
trademark for the current year amounted to EUR6,044,000 (2006:
EURG,385,000). Such decline was due to the strength of Euros as
most of the markets are US dollar based. Guy Laroche Paris also
distributes a second line of Guy Laroche garments throughout Europe,
which is loss making. In March 2007 we replaced the General Manager
in Paris and may decide ultimately to phase out such distribution
activities. The write-down of inventories and receivables contributed
to a loss of EUR1,889,000.



MICHEL RENE

MICHEL RENEFE1976F KXY » RIS EEE L ARER - (KBEERMEZRS] - W[ HBEE I BRRE
ERSHEY  RAEEHAR - AN E ZIRHEERELEARE -

MICHEL RENER2006 EEF B MM RERBARI—STREEBREIE  RENESTSESEE - BE -
MICHEL RENEEZ B S EE B S EX HNER T2 —BHEHYEAN 22 EERERBIER] -

Established in 1976, MICHEL RENE carries a full line of men’s and women’s executive and city wear and accessories.
MICHEL RENE always maintains its integrity and contemporary style which enables young and modern people to
mix-and-match creatively for all occasions.

In 2006, MICHEL RENE achieved the ‘Hong Kong Top Brand Award 2005’ organised by the Hong Kong Brand
Development Council. The brand image is affirmed. In the same year, MICHEL RENE was awarded the ‘Service
Retailer of the Year in Fashion & Accessories’ of the ‘Mystery Shoppers Programme’ organised by the Hong Kong
Retail Management Association.
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Review of Operations (continued)

Hang Ten

The Group owns a 20% stake in Hang Ten Group Holdings Limited
(“Hang Ten”) which is listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited. The investment in Hang Ten continues to be successful with
its geographically diversified markets.

Garment Manufacturing

The Group’s manufacturing plant in Dongguan operates at full capacity.
However, the increased costs of labour, fuel and all other expenses
were not fully recovered resulting in a small loss for the first time.
Management has increased selling prices and improved efficiency to
compensate for these inflationary factors in Mainland China.

Miscellaneous

The security printing business in Hong Kong returned a healthy profit
with increased business activities in Hong Kong. Rental income from
our investment properties also recorded an increase.

Prospects and Developments

Seeing the difficulties relating to our two new brands in the
Greater China Region, we are minimising losses with more careful
planning. As part of these initiatives, we may ultimately phase out the
distribution activities in Europe of the Guy Laroche second line
business. We will invest more in our existing brands to strengthen our
market share.

Appreciation

On behalf of the Board, | would like to thank our shareholders, our
customers, our banks and our suppliers for their continuous support.
Furthermore, | would like to express our sincere appreciation to all the
staff of the Group.

Chan Sui Kau
Chairman

Hong Kong, 20 July 2007



Ashworth.

R B B BIAshworthPA1987 5 A » E N RMRE ~ SFENS LSERERRAEERRS o £XEDarrell
Survey JHEERES » AshworthS R R IRIMAYZRE REE + —FI5EF 1L - MEXR2002F £2005FE(H
BISREX) MHEE [(REEE ST OAARREIRN2001F 22005F FRZRB(SHR B BE[RESHEX
RE-BRESLTERRARE]  ERRERAZSHERREFENER -

AREB RAshworth K E &R R REIHAANRIE o AshworthRBUH BEEF IR B R HIARTE - 1£20055F K 2006F
EESEATEEEH SRR HER B SR EEDRFIARANZEFERERETER]

Ashworth was established in California, U.S.A in 1987. It markets a full line of quality men’s and women’s golf
apparel and casual wear, featuring natural style and relaxed fit. According to the Darrel Survey of the U.S.A., Ashworth
has been ranked ‘Number One Apparel Brand in Golf’ eleven years in a row. The brand has also been selected as
‘My Favorite Men’s Apparel’ by ‘China Golf’ Magazine between 2002 and 2005 and, ‘The Best Golf Awards — Best
Golf Apparel (Men)’ by “Golf Digest” Magazine (Chinese Edition) three times between 2001 and 2005.

The Group is the licensee for the Greater China Region and Thailand. Ashworth is also highly recognised for its
quality service. Ashworth has been awarded the ‘Service Retailer of the Year in Fashion & Accessories — Sports &
Outdoor Products Category’ of the ‘Mystery Shoppers Programme’ in 2005 and 2006 by the Hong Kong Retail
Management Association.
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AEBHEEZE-_ZEZTEF=ZA=1+—H1t
FEZEAEBEEHNTRESE
1,022,818,000L (ZZEZE X F : B
1,082,188,0007T) ° ANEE Z F ZEKK
X5 & 458 T K 1.2% % B ¥ 917,708,000
T (ZZ2ZTRF B #929,265,0007T) -
R A EEB 8.7 (ZETNF
90%) - RFEERIIAZFL WM EFIEE
KB M s 4258 578 #61,164,0000T (=
TENF - H¥60,146,0007T) ©

FA - AEBEZENNEUTREZEEE
631,991,000 (ZZEZRNF : B
638,223,0007T) ° EF X £61.8% (=
TNF : 61.8%) °

HE-_ZZ+tF-_A=+—BLFE
< éﬂﬁﬂﬁ%% 9%Z 78 #120,171,000
71(* TR B 1162,199,0007T) ©

7 $H A AN & F 2 B 357,901,0007T £
F+ = 8% 385,848,000 TE MR A
X & B T4 Bl 7% 14,080,000
7T N 7 #8,935,0007T °

NFFE B E AL AN BB #6,992,0000T (=
TENF - B 4,366,0007T) © B@LE K
RNREAFEHRBITER L -

AEREARAESZBRREGENR

118,121,000 (ZEE N F « B
161,913,0007T) °
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Results of Operations

Turnover of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2007 decreased
slightly to HK$1,022,818,000 (2006: HK$1,032,188,000). Total sales
of garments, the Group’s principal business, declined by 1.2% to
HK$917,708,000 (2006: HK$929,265,000), representing 89.7% (2006:
90%) of the consolidated turnover. Total royalty and related income
of HK$61,164,000 (2006: HK$60,146,000) was received from external
customers during the year.

Gross profit of the Group for the year decreased slightly to
HK$631,991,000 (2006: HK$638,223,000). The gross margin was
61.8% (2006: 61.8%).

Profit from operations for the year ended 31 March 2007 decreased
by 25.9% to HK$120,171,000 (2006: HK$162,199,000). Distribution
costs increased from HK$357,901,000 for the previous year to
HK$385,848,000 which was mainly due to increases in rental charges
of HK$14,080,000 and staff costs of HK$8,935,000.

Finance costs for the year amounted to HK$6,992,000 (2006:
HK$4,366,000). The increase in finance costs was mainly due to an
increase in bank loans.

Profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company for the year
was HK$118,121,000 (2006: HK$161,913,000).
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ZEIAquascutumM 1851 MY - —HRMALFEN -0 » RERBESRAXEZNRITE  ARTER
B RET - AEH mREEREMERNRER K MERNEAR - mERAMAHED  SREERE - R
MEREFIE  REEYEE - BEHTF » AquasctumEZ EEENR « BUAEH  UEBAZENSR -

ZF%I?%Aquascutumjth%i&E B BRARREBENANRE  cREEESERE  BEYUHRENE
CEHEALIRITHAES -

Aquascutum—E BB RMEEE R - 2004F Z2006 F EE = NETETEERHERE M REETE
—ERMYIESRGRARN 2 2FERERESTER]

British label Aquascutum has been a part of London city life since its establishment in 1851. Its heritage is rooted
in excellent British tailoring and it has always had a keen eye on fashion, creating an understated elegance and
stylishly luxurious look. Its sartorial confidence, authentic quality and fine craftsmanship shown in the faultless
attention to detail is trusted throughout the world. Over the decades the brand has dressed the powerful: British
royalty, politicians and celebrities.

The Group is the licensee for the Greater China Region, Singapore, Malaysia and Thailand markets. Aquascutum
is positioned as an upmarket brand and targets to entrepreneurs, professionals and executives.

Aquascutum’s high standard of service is well recognised. The brand has achieved the ‘Service Retailer of the Year
in Fashion & Accessories — High Fashion Category’ of the ‘Mystery Shoppers Programme’ organised by the Hong
Kong Retail Management Association three times from 2004 to 2006.
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XKk EE Business Review
B & Sales of garments
REBZZLEBBTERMERE - The Group’s core business is the retailing and wholesaling of fashion
A & %5 M Guy LarocheZ Bl 4R & @ £ apparel. Due to a decline in sales in the Taiwan market and the second
Bz BETE  RFEFERKRBHEER line Guy Laroche garments in Europe, total sales of garments for the
BEFTEK12% - NIXKEEXEK 2B year recorded a 1.2% decrease as compared to the previous year.
F & 5 2 7 % 145,237,0007T T F& 2 % & Contribution from operations from sales of garments declined from
89,421,0007T ° HK$145,237,000 for the previous year to HK$89,421,000.
7R B F A K P EE [ 5% 32fE P During the year, the Group added 32 new outlets in the Greater China
m - P9 2 48 2 Hh 316MH 1 = 344 o Region. The total number of outlets increased from 316 to 344.
PITH 2 b l&@ 54
Breakdown of outlets
by geographical locations
Bz HZE
=BTLHF —TTRF +/(-)
=A =A P9t
As of As of +/(-)
March 2007 March 2006 outlets
& Geographical locations
E Hong Kong 44 43 +1
JEFY Macau 7 6 +1
HREE AR A Other areas of the
HAthih = People’s Republic of China 230 205 +25
=y Taiwan 57 52 +5
B Europe 3 7 -4
EXEEEEES South East Asian countries 3 3 -
#Et Total 344 316 +28
REBRRELE —HRE/R - ZHER The Group operates a manufacturing plant in Dongguan which posted
AEFRERMRE RS TR LRSI BEE an operating loss for the year resulting from increases in fuel and labour
B8 - costs.
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LBl Charles JourdanfiR1921F R » LLEKEERTRELAZREMNSREBEMZEE/E  AFFH
HRZEENEWERH  EHEBLZESRERMERY  BEBEECHTER @ B3 T ma HERNEAER
EREBHIEERN—F » BREAFAAES -2 -

ZNE B A Charles Jourdanfn i 1E K AR EE b [ 7 3R = oo i [ A9 AR 2 % e AR EE o

Charles Jourdan is a leading French label famous for its luxury and colorful footwear. Established in 1921, the
brand recently launched its fashion apparel and accessories collection using the same passion and innovation.
The new line is refreshingly modern, luxurious, versatile and is sure to be a big hit.

The Group is the licensee of Charles Jourdan full-line apparel and accessories for the Greater China Region and
South East Asia.
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HtE%

TERBFZHERAREFBEMLET -
REHREBXERBBERRENE -
BEDRGES

EAXAXH

FR - ANEEBERKE LB 120,883,0007T A
EEEMEBENEEETFEE  =F8
/578 1 33,422,0007T °

RBEETRUBER

AEBEzESRKEABELEZRE R
RITAREHRZBITEE - AEEESE
BEEMTETENESEERE KK -

HE-_ZZLF=A=+—HILFE
FEEBEREEBELE RS AER
121,477,000 (ZZEZ NG | B
112,324,000T) - RZ_FEZE L F = A
=+ B EEFAIMREBFTEE
69,497,000 T4 * ANEBEEABE S LIRTT
17 708 137,283,0007T (2 R R 1TE X
REBIETER)  BRZZEZERF=A
=+ — B8 2 #%121,993,0007t A FT £
Fo R -_TEELFE=AF=+—H &K%
EREAUESAATEEERARS 2
W EHF A BEES3,977,000T (ZEE X
£ #7,550,0007T) °

AEEBR -_ZTTZLtF=ZA=Z+—HZ
BB EFEABET47,254,0000T ¢ M
MR-ZBEXE=ZA=1+—BAABE
700,650,0007C - AEBRAFERE
RNEBEHEAIS(ZEZTNE 1 0.13) -
THi% 48 5 BB ¥ 105,537,000 (ZEE X
F B 091,462,0007T) M A% R RE 2
7 1 727 681 000ﬁ<:== TREFE B
681,829,0007T) 57t & - AEE 2 (EERZ
Ejjszn-l—z%\ ©
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Business Review (continued)

Other business

Rental income from industrial buildings increased from the previous
year. The security printing operation benefited from the improved
business environment in Hong Kong and recorded another successful
year.

Capital Expenditure

During the year, the Group spent approximately HK$20,883,000 in
recurring additions and replacement of fixed assets, compared to
HK$33,422,000 for the previous year.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group financed its operations by internally generated cashflows
and banking facilities provided by its bankers. The Group continues
to maintain a prudent approach to managing its financial requirements.

For the year ended 31 March 2007, the Group generated
HK$121,477,000 (2006: HK$112,324,000) of cash from operations.
As at 31 March 2007, the Group had cash and bank deposits net of
overdrafts and short-term bank loans of HK$137,283,000, an increase
from HK$121,993,000 as at 31 March 2006 after payments of
dividends of HK$69,497,000 during the year. At 31 March 2007, the
Group had listed securities which were readily convertible into cash
with a fair value of HK$3,977,000 (2006: HK$7,550,000).

The Group’s total net assets as at 31 March, 2007 were
HK$747,254,000 as compared with HK$700,650,000 as at 31 March
2006. The Group’s gearing ratio at the year end was 0.15 (2006:
0.13) which was calculated based on total borrowings of
HK$105,537,000 (2006: HK$91,462,000) and shareholders’ equity
of HK$727,681,000 (2006: HK$681,829,000). The Group’s
borrowings are mainly on a floating rate basis.
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AEBAINERRERTHEHTEFERR
RBE - REBZWARFAXEEEE
;e AR R BTk AR®ED
B - REEINERR  FEKEEDNR

EXZUEHEEEERXME -

R-ETLE=A=+—0 KELME
BB 57,700,000 (ZEENF B
44,400,00070) 2 & TIREWEDEIF T

RIT - WRBRITEE  EhCEAS
BREBZERT (2T RF  BKZT
JT) e

E/\_??’EE B=+—8H  AXa

ETHBAG ZRITEERRITIELE
R BXABES HLAES7,524,000
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7 #5.84,216,0007T °

B G

RZZTZENFAA=-+=ZH  ARaAK
MR E ([T - &%
EREFSHE —EER EE-_ZT T
FNAZ+ZBEH - RIEBEREZ
ZER AR T‘mAéﬁuh\%(ﬁ
BALEEZESRER) HEBERE -
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FA G ABAAEEEEREERLE
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A B EIR
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EERHBLF2800A - AEE—MLAE

BERMHAZFIZHME  HTFBEEEER
AR RINFTEIE  EREREMER
Blzmsk - ptoh - MEaRFAREZE

BEEMNBETZTEREMAAERE
BERMMIBELRKLBRE -

Liquidity and Financial Resources (continued)

The Group also maintains a conservative approach to foreign exchange
exposure management. The Group’s income and expenditure streams
are mainly denominated in Hong Kong Dollars, New Taiwan Dollars,
Japanese Yen, Pounds Sterling, Euros and Renminbi. To manage
currency risks, non-Hong Kong Dollar assets are financed primarily
by matching local currency debts as far as possible.

As at 31 March 2007, certain investment properties with an aggregate
carrying value of HK$57,700,000 (2006: HK$44,400,000) were
pledged to banks for obtaining banking facilities of which HK$Nil was
utilised (2006: HKS$NIl).

As at 31 March 2007, there were contingent liabilities in respect of
guarantees given to banks by the Company in respect of banking
facilities extended to certain subsidiaries amounting to approximately
HK$87,524,000, as compared with HK$84,216,000 as at 31 March
2006.

Share Option Scheme

On 23 September 2004, the Company adopted a share option scheme
(“the Share Option Scheme”) which will remain in force until 22
September 2014. Pursuant to the terms of the Share Option Scheme,
the Company may grant options to eligible participants including
directors and employees of the Group to subscribe for shares in the
Company, subject to a maximum of 15,469,879 new shares.

During the year, no share options were granted to directors and
employees of the Group and no options were exercised.

Human Resources

As at 31 March 2007, the Group had approximately 2,800 employees.
The Group offers competitive remuneration packages including medical
subsidies and retirement scheme contributions to its employees in
compensation for their contribution. In addition, discretionary bonuses
and share options may also be granted to the eligible employees based
on the Group’s and the individuals’ performances.
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Pursuant to Appendix 23 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), the Board of Directors (the “Board”)
of YGM Trading Limited (the “Company”) presents this Corporate
Governance Report for the year under review.

Corporate Governance Practices

The Board firmly believes that corporate governance is essential to
the success of the Company and has adopted various measures to
ensure its strict compliance with relevant regulatory requirements, a
high level of transparency in corporate governance and an excellent
performance in operations.

In the opinion of the Board, the Company has complied throughout
the year ended 31 March 2007 with the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules,
except that the non-executive directors were not appointed for a
specific term but are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election
at the Company’s annual general meetings in accordance with the
Company’s articles of association.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted a Securities Dealing Code regarding
director’s securities transactions on terms no less exacting than the
required standard set out in the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) contained in Appendix
10 of the Listing Rules. All Directors have confirmed, upon specific
enquiry by the Company, that they have complied with the required
standard set out in the Mode Code and its Securities Dealing Code
throughout the year under review.

Board of Directors

The major responsibilities of the Board include formulation of strategic
plans, adoption of corporate strategies, assessment of investment
projects, monitoring and controlling the Group’s operating and financial
performance, assessment and management of risk to which the Group
is exposed.

The Board comprises seven Executive Directors, being Messrs. Chan
Sui Kau, Chan Wing Fui, Peter, Chan Wing Sun, Samuel, Chan Wing
Kee, Chan Wing To and Fu Sing Yam, Wiliam and Madam Chan Suk
Ling, Shirley, and three Independent Non-executive Directors, being
Messrs. Leung Hok Lim, Wong Lam and Lin Keping.
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Board of Directors (continued)

The Company has appointed a sufficient number of Independent Non-
executive Directors with suitable professional qualifications, such as
expertise in accounting and financial management, in accordance with
the requirements of the Listing Rules. The Company has received from
each of the Independent Non-executive Directors an annual
confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules.

The Board held four meetings during the year. The attendance record
of individual Directors is as below:

HEBITEBRRE
Meetings attended / Held

2= Directors
BeR 3 Bk Chan Sui Kau 4/4
B ok 2= Chan Wing Fui, Peter 4/4
R ok & Chan Wing Sun, Samuel 4/4
B BR R B Chan Suk Ling, Shirley 4/4
R i A Chan Wing Kee 4/4
FER 8 Chan Wing To 4/4
AR Fu Sing Yam, William 4/4
R 2k Leung Hok Lim 4/4
F & Wong Lam 4/4
N Lin Keping 4/4
FTRRTHBAR Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

EFEEXTREARATHAHNABE
Moy SEEERENBRERD EF
EXFAANELERBEREBRKE
RAE  THRARAMNAEEEATER
BEBHMT  EEZTEER  MENR
AERED  EEBREIREED M
B THARDEFNR T HthE
FZHMBERFBERFEIAELRZATF
BE -

The roles of the Chairman of the Board and the Chief Executive Officer
of the Company are separated, with a clear division of responsibilities.
The Chairman of the Board is responsible for formulating corporate
strategies and overall business development planning. The Chief
Executive Officer’s duty is to oversee the execution of daily business
activities. The division of responsibilities at the board level is to ensure
a balance of power and authority. The Chief Executive Officer is the
son of the Chairman, details of the relationship between other Directors
are disclosed on pages 30 to 32.

2006/07 Annual Repsrt—F10



EEERRS
Corporate Governance Report

BEREES

REBELTRAUNRE  ARAREKE
Bt EEREEE EREEeH
ZEBUFRTESAN - RBRE
EIREERMRFELE  ERB/R
BRtE -BERZEERNFRALAMAM
ReF HEERANZA °

EREASIEAREEALNNEH
R TR BB PR IS8 B 3K
AT T BBIA A R PO H B R R A
AEHGANRERRE  RENHE
Z5 -

ERZBECEHNBRE_TTLF=A
ST -HLEFENAEEZEZYTR
xNEHEENERBERS -

MEeEEES

MeZEeHmAEKEAK  DRIAM
RRTEERKERE(HEZES T
FEIRBRKB A - UR=BBIIEH
TEF BREREL TREERM
RERE - ARBERE EWRRAER
EHEMEZEeNEDREDLE -

MeZEeARERVTMEBRMNE
FaFRELER  UREEEZHM
THAE ETEEREAFLRAAXN
MEFE T EFRBOERLREE
FREx-ZEENEEEMBEHMEH
FHERMATHRBGREREAMSEERE
AEZENEBERFNORBIINRE
RABEBEZEAL -

ZAM—RgE W

B K
b
piii]

> 19
=

m

o OF
JfE4

- /—=2006/07 = &

=

Audit Committee

The Company formulated written terms of reference for the Audit
Committee in accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules.
The Audit Committee consists of three Independent Non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Leung Hok Lim, Mr. Wong Lam and Mr. Lin
Keping. Mr. Leung Hok Lim is the chairman of the Audit Committee.
The Audit Committee held two meetings during the year with an
attendance rate of 100%.

The Audit Committee is mainly responsible for monitoring the integrity
of the Company’s financial statements, reviewing the Company’s
internal control system and its execution through the review of the
work undertaken by the internal and external auditors, evaluating
financial information and related disclosure; and reviewing connected
transactions.

The Group’s audited financial statements, internal control system and
connected transactions for the year ended 31 March 2007 have been
reviewed by the Audit Committee.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee consists of two Executive Directors,
namely Mr. Chan Wing Fui, Peter (chairman of the Remuneration
Committee) and Mr. Chan Wing Sun, Samuel, and three Independent
Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Leung Hok Lim, Mr. Wong Lam
and Mr. Lin Keping. The Company had formulated written terms of
reference for the Remuneration Committee in accordance with the
requirements of the Listing Rules.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for ensuring formal and
transparent procedures for developing remuneration policies and
overseeing remuneration packages of the Directors. It takes into
consideration factors such as salaries and compensation packages
paid by comparable companies, time commitment and responsibilities
of the Directors. It would also take into account whether the
emoluments offered are appropriate to the duties and performance of
the respective individuals concerned and whether such emoluments
are competitive and sufficiently attractive to retain such individuals.

The Remuneration Committee convened one meeting during the year
with an attendance rate of 100%.
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Nomination of Directors

The Board has not established a Nomination Committee. Pursuant to
the Company’s Articles of Association, shareholders of the Company
are entitled to propose candidates. The proposal for the appointment
of directors should be submitted at the annual general meeting for
approval. The intention for proposing director candidates and the
acceptance of nomination by the candidates should be submitted in
writing to the Company no earlier than the date of dispatch of annual
general meeting notice and no later than the annual general meeting.
Time limits for nomination and acceptance of nomination should not
be less than 7 days.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial
Statements

The Directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation of financial
statements for each financial period with a view to ensuring such
financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of
the Group and of the results and cash flow for that period. The
Company’s financial statements are prepared in accordance with all
relevant statutory requirements and applicable accounting standards.
The Directors are responsible for ensuring that appropriate accounting
policies are selected and applied consistently; and that judgments
and estimates made are prudent and reasonable.

The reporting responsibilities of KPMG, the Company’s auditors, are
set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on page 34 to 35 of this
Annual Report.

Auditors’ Remuneration

Total auditors’ remuneration in relation to the statutory audit of the
Group amounted to HK$4,157,000 (2006 : HK$3,189,000) of which
a sum of HK$2,112,000 (2006: HK$1,918,000) was paid or payable
to the Group’s principal auditors, KPMG.
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Auditors’ Remuneration (continued)

The remuneration paid to the Group’s principal auditor, KPMG, and
its affiliated firms, for services rendered is broken down as follow:

2007 2006
HK$ HK$
2,112,000 1,918,000
524,000 554,000
2,636,000 2,472,000

N EERREARER

EFEeHREARREARIEAFER
EEMAT UBEEZZESGRAR
ZHE > BFEURSFHE A RIEET
&L —R AEARFBREMAEAX
B M EEREMIEE  UEE
BREETHF RIZXFAFEZHEZ
BERUERMERZEFREREEREHR
RS HEEEHScAREE - A0
TZﬁW%W HEEERHEAIE (B
BURE)RE  E2EFRETELR
EK%&&E% WA R & 32 (1 2F K BR)
ERGRAZRR  FEAHBARF
Lﬁﬁ%

B B R

FA - ARBAEZTAFFEZEF
BEMEEXSHEMTRAABEZR
Bzl BEREREZZ
BEMBAINSEREETRT - A
RBMHUAEEHE _TTLEF=A=
T B FEARAREE S ERERET
mef c NEREREHERETERFA

FHELEBEERNERZEEREST SR
H—ENELRE - ABEZEFENR
HERECRERBERZBEES2E  BERZX

SERNEMZANSERINER B
BADTR BB R R T

E

=

['9—2006/07 &

=

Internal Control and Risk Management

The Board recognises its responsibility for maintaining an adequate
and sound internal control system and through the Audit Committee
and the Internal Auditors, conducts reviews on the effectiveness of
these systems at least annually, covering all material controls, financial,
operational and compliance controls and risk management functions.
The process used in reviewing the effectiveness of these internal control
systems includes discussion with management on risk areas identified
by management. The purpose of the Company’s internal control is to
provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material
misstatement or loss and to manage rather than eliminate risks of
failure in operational systems so that the Company’s objectives can
be achieved.

Internal Audit Function

Although there was no in-house internal audit set up during the year,
the Company engaged an external firm of professional accountants
to provide internal audit services (“Internal Auditors”) and review specific
areas of concern identified by management and the Audit Committee.
The Internal Auditors performed a review of the effectiveness of the
system of internal control of the Group for the year ended 31 March
2007 so as to furnish some degree of comfort to the Audit Committee
and the Board on the reliability and integrity of the system and control
process. The results of the internal control review were submitted to
the Audit Committee for consideration. The Audit Committee has
reviewed the results of the internal control review and is satisfied that
the existing system of internal controls is effective and adequate.
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Report of the Dlrectors

The Directors have pleasure in submitting their annual report together
with the audited financial statements of YGM Trading Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries and associates (collectively referred
to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2007.

Principal Place of Business

The Company is a company incorporated and domiciled in Hong Kong
and has its registered office and principal place of business at 22 Tai
Yau Street, San Po Kong, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

Principal Activities

The principal activities of the Company are investment holding and
the provision of management services. The principal activities and
other particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries and associates are
set out in the financial statements on pages 117 to 120.

The analysis of the principal activities and geographical locations of
the operations of the Group during the financial year are set out in
note 13 to the financial statements.

Major Customers and Suppliers

During the year, the Group’s sales to its five largest customers and
purchases from its five largest suppliers accounted for less than 30%
of the Group’s turnover and purchases respectively.

Financial Statements

The profit of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2007 and the
state of the Company’s and the Group’s affairs as at that date are set
out in the financial statements on pages 36 to 120.

Transfer to Reserves

Profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company, before
dividends, for the year ended 31 March 2007 of HK$118,121,000
(2006: HK$161,913,000) has been transferred to reserves. Other
movements in reserves are set out in note 29 to the financial
statements.

An interim dividend of HK13 cents per ordinary share (2006: HK13
cents per ordinary share) was paid on 16 January 2007. The Directors
now recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK32 cents per
ordinary share (2006: HK32 cents per ordinary share) in respect of
the year ended 31 March 2007.
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Charitable Donations

Charitable donations made by the Group during the year amounted
to HK$188,000 (2006: HK$150,000).

Fixed Assets

Details of movements in fixed assets during the year are set out in
note 14 to the financial statements.

Share Capital

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during the
year are set out in note 29 to the financial statements.

Except as set out in note 29(c)(ii) to the financial statements, there
were no purchases, sales or redemptions of the Company’s listed
securities by the Company or any of its subsidiaries during the year.
Shares were repurchased during the year to reduce the dilutive effect
of granting share options.

Directors

The Directors during the financial year and up to the date of this report
were:

Executive Directors

Chan Sui Kau

Chan Wing Fui, Peter
Chan Wing Sun, Samuel
Chan Suk Ling, Shirley
Fu Sing Yam, William
Chan Wing Kee

Chan Wing To

Independent Non-executive Directors

Leung Hok Lim
Wong Lam
Lin Keping

In accordance with Articles 95 and 104 of the Company’s articles of
association, Messrs Chan Wing Fui, Peter, Chan Wing Sun, Samuel,
Chan Wing To and Lin Keping shall retire as Directors of the Company
by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

The Company confirms that it has received from each of the Independent
Non-executive Directors a confirmation of their respective independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the
“Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) and the Company considers the Independent Non-executive
Directors to be independent.
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P& I BR Chan Sui Kau

R ok ZE Chan Wing Fui, Peter

PR ok %& Chan Wing Sun, Samuel
AR  Chan Suk Ling, Shirley
3 Chan Wing Kee

BR K Chan Wing To

[EREge Fu Sing Yam, William

Directors’ Service Contracts

The Independent Non-executive Directors were appointed by the board
of Directors and their remuneration is determined by the board of
Directors, see section headed ‘Compliance with the Code of Best
Practice’.

None of the Directors who has offered himself for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company has entered into
any service contract with the Company or any other member of the
Group which is not determinable by the relevant employer within one
year without payment of compensation, other than normal statutory
compensation.

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests in
Shares and Underlying Shares

The Directors and chief executive of the Company who held office at
31 March 2007 had the following interests in the issued shares of the
Company, its subsidiaries and other associated corporations (within
the meaning of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)) at that
date as recorded in the register of directors’ and chief executives’
interests and short positions required to be kept under section 352 of
the SFO :

(I) Interests in issued shares

BREEBY0.50THEER
Ordinary shares of HK$0.50 each
B A RO RikER AR ER HitbhgE
Personal Family Corporate Other
interests® interests interests interests
4,929,272 214,368 3,840,820 (ii)
324,068 3,820,420 - (ii), (i) & (iv)
2,072,072 - 7,291,144 (ii), (i) & (iv)
3,613,544 16,000 - (ii), (iii) & (iv)
3,692,776 819,404 - (i), (i), (iv) & (v)
4,144,736 - - (i), (iii), (iv) & (v)
900,462 — - (ii)
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Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests in
Shares and Underlying Shares (continued)

(I) Interests in issued shares (continued)

()  The shares are registered under the names of the Directors
and chief executive who are the beneficial owners.

(i) 24,642,700 shares of the Company were held by Chan
Family Investment Corporation Limited (which is owned by
Messrs Chan Sui Kau, Chan Wing Fui, Peter, Chan Wing
Kee, Chan Wing Sun, Samuel, Chan Wing To and Fu Sing
Yam, William, Madam Chan Suk Ling, Shirley and other
members of the Chan family) and its subsidiaries.

(i) 24,595,908 shares of the Company were held by Canfield
Holdings Limited, which is indirectly owned by Messrs Chan
Wing Fui, Peter, Chan Wing Kee, Chan Wing Sun, Samuel
and Chan Wing To, Madam Chan Suk Ling, Shirley and other
members of the Chan family.

(iv) 2,917,480 shares of the Company were held by Hearty
Development Limited which is indirectly owned by Messrs
Chan Wing Fui, Peter, Chan Wing Kee, Chan Wing Sun,
Samuel and Chan Wing To, Madam Chan Suk Ling, Shirley
and other members of the Chan family.

(v) 1,597,000 shares of the Company were held by Super Team
International Limited which is indirectly owned by Messrs
Chan Wing Kee and Chan Wing To and other members of
the Chan family.

(ll) Interests in underlying shares

The Directors and chief executive of the Company have been
granted options under the Company’s share option scheme,
details of which are set out in the section “Share Option Scheme”
below.

Apart from the foregoing, none of the Directors and chief executive of
the Company or any of their spouses or children under eighteen years
of age has any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company, or any of its subsidiaries or
other associated corporations as recorded in the register required to
be kept under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Companies.



Report of the Directors

BRESE
RAFNBERAES B DR =B BHFAN

A= +*E%@ Bt - ARABEER

BENBEBASENEE (BREAE
IEHWE AMESR) EXBREN

RBARBEND - ZAABEERAKE
BERIEKSE BBARTNKRASHE
- BBREMIEARNRARERND
MEER > AEARANMEZEBRRAIERN
@ BREFEDREBEE_Z-—OFAN
A+ A+ FHEABRMATHIT
HEB IR TEMEMBBERE -

BERENTEEARNDNEERE - KK
RBEERTEREEEBMERIMA
PR 2 B 8545 1) Y T (B A0 A 10 70 B AR R X
TERMOBEEXBERTABARSM
ERARBEENFHRTE=ZEFHK
BERE

BREERTHHROAMBER - I
ARETHBERTFRITE-

RZEZEF=ZA=+—H BREER
ST B AT B AT I RR 17 48 25 15,469,879
D (BEEHRFEERKESITE
Y BE B% #E A 7 8597 /9 11,983,0000% A%
B)  EARRAR=ZEZEELEF=ZA=+
—HEBHTERANI0% - L2 EER
BZraERERESRE LRMSE
E2HEERNERNTEAREAERD
EREETERDEITRE TEITHR
BEE  THBARAAREBHITETER
H1% °

R-ZEZLF=ZA=+—8 AQAE
EREENRARBBARARD (R=_F
ZLtF=ZRA=+T—HNBRTER/EYK
5.857) MBI A T h#Eas - M
MIRIB AR BRE RER &R T B AE R
BHOE  AXNRBANKE - Z58B
BRIEILRET - HEAFEREEEBR
BRAB-RARFSREEEK0.50T
F) B AR e

Share Option Scheme

The Company has a share option scheme which was adopted on 23
September 2004 whereby the Directors of the Company are
authorised, at their discretion, to invite employees of the Group,
including Directors of any company in the Group, to take up options
to subscribe for shares in the Company. The purpose of the scheme
is to provide an opportunity for employees of the Group to acquire an
equity participation in the Company and to encourage them to work
towards enhancing the value of the Company and its shares for the
benefit of the Company and its shareholders as a whole. The share
option scheme is valid and effective for a period of 10 years ending on
22 September 2014, after which no further options will be granted.

The exercise price of options is the highest of the nominal value of the
shares, the closing price of the shares on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited on the date of grant and the average closing price
of the shares on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited for the
five business days immediately preceding the date of grant.

The options vest 30 days from the date of grant and are then
exercisable within a period of 10 years from the date of grant.

The total number of shares available for issue under the share option
scheme as at 31 March 2007 was 15,469,879 shares (including options
for 11,983,000 shares that have been granted but have not yet lapsed
or been exercised) which represented 10% of the issued share capital
of the Company as at 31 March 2007. In respect of the maximum
entitlement of each participant under the scheme, the number of shares
issued and to be issued upon exercise of the options granted to each
participant in any 12-month period is limited to 1% of the Company’s
ordinary shares in issue.

At 31 March 2007, the Directors and employees of the Company
had the following interests in the options to subscribe for shares
in the Company (market value per share at 31 March 2007 was
HK$5.85) granted for a nominal charge on acceptance of the offer of
grant of an option under the Share Option Scheme of the Company.
The options are unlisted. Each option gives the holder the right to
subscribe for one ordinary share of HK$0.50 each of the Company.
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1
HRATEN i L3S
BREHE | XW0E | HRTEM BRER
No. of REHE | BREZE FEAM
options No. of No. of BRETT BRHE
outstanding options options fIEHE | RITEE |Market value
at the lapsed | outstanding Period during Exercise | per share at
beginning of during atthe &FHH |whichoptionsare | price per |date of grant
the year the year yearend | Date granted exercisable share | of options
(HKS) HKS$*
EE Directors
% 3 Bk Chan Sui Kau 1,000,000 - 1,000,000 17/1/2005 16/2/2005 12.10 12.00
to 15/02/2015
BkER Chan Wing Fui, Peter 1,500,000 - 1,500,000 17/1/2005 16/2/2005 12.10 12.00
HERB and his spouse to 15/02/2015
Bk & Chan Wing Sun, Samuel 1,200,000 - 1,200,000 17/1/2005 16/2/2005 12.10 12.00
to 15/02/2015
BB = Chan Suk Ling, Shirley 1,500,000 - 1,500,000 17/1/2005 16/2/2005 12.10 12.00
to 15/02/2015
Bk R Chan Wing Kee 800,000 - 800,000 17/1/2005 16/2/2005 12.10 12.00
to 15/02/2015
RAKH Chan Wing To 500,000 - 500,000 | 17/1/2005 16/2/2005 12.10 12.00
to 15/02/2015
B Fu Sing Yam, William 1,200,000 ~ | 1,200,000 | 17/1/2005 16/2/2005 12.10 12.00
to 15/02/2015
22K Leung Hok Lim 100,000 - 100,000 17/1/2005 16/2/2005 12.10 12.00
to 15/02/2015
1% Wong Lam 25,000 - 25,000 | 17/1/2005 16/2/2005 12.10 12.00
to 15/02/2015
T Lin Keping 25,000 - 25,000 | 17/1/2005 16/2/2005 12.10 12.00
to 15/02/2015
7,850,000 - | 7,850,000
E& Employees 4,177,000 (44,000) | 4,133,000 17/1/2005 16/2/2005 12.10 12.00
to 15/02/2015
@ Total 12,027,000 (44,000) | 11,983,000
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Share Option Scheme (continued)

The options granted to the Directors are registered under the names
of the Directors who are also the beneficial owners.

*

being the weighted average closing price of the Company’s
ordinary shares immediately before the dates on which the options
were granted.

Information on the accounting policy for share options granted and
the weighted average value per option is provided in note 1(q)(ii) and
note 27 to the financial statements respectively.

Apart from the foregoing, at no time during the year was the Company
or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the
Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company or any other
body corporate.

Substantial Shareholders

As at 31 March 2007, the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to section 336 of the SFO showed that, other than the
interests disclosed above in respect of the directors, no other interests
required to be recorded in the register kept under section 336 of the
SFO have been notified to the Company.

Save as disclosed herein, the Directors are not aware of any person
who was, directly or indirectly, interested or had a short position in the
shares or underlying shares which fall to be disclosed to the Company
and the Stock Exchange under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO or, was directly or indirectly, interested in 10% or
more of the nominal value of the issued share capital carrying rights to
vote in all circumstances at general meeting of the Company or any
options in respect of such capital as at 31 March 2007.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors of the Company as at the
date of this annual report, the Company has maintained the prescribed
public float under the Listing Rules.
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Connected Transactions And Directors’
Interests In Contracts

Details of connected transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules are set out in note 33 to the financial statements. In the
opinion of the Independent Non-executive Directors, these transactions
were :

(i)  conducted in the ordinary and usual course of business;

(i) either on normal commercial terms or, where there is no available
comparison, on terms that are fair and reasonable so far as the
independent shareholders of the Company are concerned; and

(i) either in accordance with the terms of the agreements governing
such transactions or, where there are no such agreements, on
terms no less favourable than those available to or from (as
appropriate) independent third parties.

Apart from the foregoing, no contract of significance to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a director
of the Company had a material interest, subsisted at the end of the
year or at any time during the year.

Bank Loans and Other Borrowings

Particulars of bank loans and other borrowings of the Company and
the Group as at 31 March 2007 are set out in note 25 to the financial
statements.

Five Year Summary

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on page 121 of the annual
report.

Properties

Particulars of the major properties and property interests of the Group
are set out in note 14 to the financial statements.
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Retirement Schemes

The Company and certain of its subsidiaries in Hong Kong operate a
defined contribution retirement scheme (“the Scheme”) for all qualified
employees. The assets of the Scheme are held separately under a
provident fund managed by an independent trustee. Pursuant to the
rules of the Scheme, the employer is required to make contributions
to the Scheme calculated at 5% of the employees’ basic salaries on a
monthly basis, whereas the employees’ contributions are optional and,
at their own discretion. Where employees leave the Scheme prior to
vesting fully in accordance with the rules of the Scheme, the forfeited
employer’s contributions shall be used to reduce the future
contributions of the employer or shall be refunded to the employer on
request.

Following the introduction of the Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF”)
on 1 December 2000 employer contributions are now made to the
MPF. The MPF scheme is operated under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees governed by the
Employment Ordinance in Hong Kong. The MPF scheme is a defined
contribution retirement scheme administered by independent trustees.
Under the MPF scheme, the employer and its employees are each
required to make contributions to the scheme at 5% of the employees’
relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of
HK$20,000. Contributions to the scheme vest immediately.

The employees are entitled to 100% of the employer’s contributions
made prior to the introduction of the MPF and the accrued interest
after 10 complete years of service, or at an increasing scale of between
30% to 90% after completion of 3 to 9 years’ service of the Scheme.

The employees of the subsidiaries in the People’s Republic of China
(“the PRC”) and France are members of the state-sponsored retirement
schemes organised by the government of the PRC and France,
respectively. The subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain
percentage of payroll to the retirement scheme to fund the benefits.
The only obligation of the subsidiaries with respect to the retirement
schemes is the required contributions under the retirement schemes.

A subsidiary established in Taiwan participates in a defined benefit
retirement plan established in accordance with the local labour
standards law. Contributions to the plan are based upon 2% of wages
and salaries paid.
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Compliance with the Code of Best Practice

The Company has complied throughout the year with the Code of
Best Practice as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules except
that the Non-executive Directors of the Company are not appointed
for a specific term but are subject to rotation in annual general meetings
pursuant to Articles 95 and 104 of the Company’s articles of
association.

Audit Committee

The audit committee comprises three Independent Non-executive
Directors and reports to the board of Directors. The audit committee
meets with the Group’s senior management and external auditors
regularly to review the effectiveness of the internal control systems
and the annual report of the Group.

Auditors

KPMG retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment.
A resolution for the re-appointment of KPMG as auditors of the
Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

By order of the Board

Leung Wing Fat
Company Secretary

Hong Kong, 20 July 2007
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Directors

Chan Sui Kau GBS, OBE, JP

Aged 82. Dr. Chan is the founder of the Group. He established
Yangtzekiang Garment Ltd. in 1949 and is the Executive Chairman of
the Group as well as Yangtzekiang Garment Ltd. Dr. Chan was a
member of the 8th & 9th Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Committee. In 2002 Dr. Chan was awarded the Gold Bauhinia Star by
the Government of Hong Kong Special Administrative Region and in
2001 was awarded a Doctoral Degree of Business Administration by
the Hong Kong Polytechnic University. Dr. Chan is the former Chairman
of the Clothing Industry Training Authority (1986); former Chairman of
the Textile Council of Hong Kong (1988-1994) and presently its
Honorary Chairman; former President of the Federation of Hong Kong
Garment Manufacturers (1977-1988) and currently its Life Honorary
President; Honorary President of the Hong Kong Woollen & Synthetic
Knitting Manufacturers’ Association since 1980 and former member
of the Textile Advisory Board of Hong Kong (1971-1989) and the Labour
Advisory Board of Hong Kong (1985-1995).

Chan Wing Fui, Peter MA

Aged 61. Received a Master’s degree in Administrative Science from
Yale University, USA in 1969 and joined Yangtzekiang Garment Ltd. in
the same year. Appointed Director in 1971, Managing Director in 1980
and Vice Chairman of Yangtzekiang Garment Ltd. and the Company
in 1987. Mr. Chan has been actively involved in garment manufacturing
and marketing in the Far East and the USA for over 30 years. He is the
son of Mr. Chan Sui Kau and the brother of Mr. Chan Wing Sun,
Samuel and Ms. Chan Suk Ling, Shirley.

Chan Wing Sun, Samuel FCA

Aged 59. Received a Bachelor’s degree from the University of
Manchester, the United Kingdom in 1970 and qualified as a Chartered
Accountant in 1973. Company Secretary of Yangtzekiang Garment
Ltd. from 1974 to 1988 and Director since 1977. He was Managing
Director of the Company from 1987 to 2006 and was appointed Chief
Executive Officer in July 2006. Mr. Chan has been Chairman of Hang
Ten Group Holdings Ltd. from 2003. He is the son of Mr. Chan Sui
Kau and the brother of Mr. Chan Wing Fui, Peter and Ms. Chan Suk
Ling, Shirley.
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Chan Suk Ling, Shirley

Aged 56. Received a Bachelor’s degree from Trent University, the
United Kingdom in 1973. Madam Chan joined Yangtzekiang Garment
Ltd. in the same year and was appointed as a Director of Yangtzekiang
Garment Ltd. in 1983. She was the Deputy Managing Director of the
Company from 1987 and Managing Director from 2006. Madam Chan
has extensive experience of management in the garment retail and
wholesale business. Madam Chan is a member of the Textiles Advisory
Board of Hong Kong Special Administrative Region, a member of the
Hong Kong-France Business Partnership Committee of the Hong Kong
Trade Development Council, a member of the Quality Tourism Services
Committee of Hong Kong Tourism Board, a member of the Board of
Directors of Ocean Park Corporation, a member of the Executive
Committee of the Chinese Manufacturer’ Association of Hong Kong,
the Vice Chairman of the Hong Kong Retail Management Association,
the Vice Chairman of the Hong Kong Brand Development Council
and the Vice President of Guangdong Association of Enterprises with
Foreign Investment. She is the daughter of Mr. Chan Sui Kau and the
sister of Mr. Chan Wing Fui, Peter and Mr. Chan Wing Sun, Samuel.

Fu Sing Yam, William

Aged 45. Received a Bachelor’s degree from the University of Western
Ontario, Canada in 1984. Joined the Company in 1985. Appointed
Director of the Company in 1995 and Deputy Managing Director of
the Company in 2006. He has extensive experience in fashion retailing,
wholesaling, marketing and merchandising.

Chan Wing Kee GBS, OBE, JP

Aged 60. Received a Bachelor’s degree in Industrial Engineering in
1970. Joined Yangtzekiang Garment Ltd. in 1970 as Production
Manager and later became Sales Manager. Mr. Chan was appointed
Director in 1977 and Managing Director of Yangtzekiang Garment Ltd.
in 1987. Appointed Director of the Company in 1987. Mr. Chan has
participated in many textile negotiations with the USA and Europe for
Hong Kong and Macau. He is a Standing Committee Member of the
10th of The Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference; Deputy
of the 8th and 9th National People’s Congress of China, Executive
Committee Member of Commission on Strategic Development of Hong
Kong Special Administrative Region; a member of Economic Council
of Macau Special Administrative Region; Ex-member of the Textile
Advisory Board; Ex-Committee Member of the Preparatory Committee
for Hong Kong Special Administrative Region and Ex-Advisor of Hong
Kong Affairs. He is the brother of Mr. Chan Wing To.
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Chan Wing To PhD

Aged 56. Joined YGM Singapore in 1978. Appointed Director of
Yangtzekiang Garment Ltd in 1983 and the Company in 1987. He is
the brother of Mr. Chan Wing Kee.

Leung Hok Lim FCPA(Aust.), CPA(Macau), FCPA(Practising)

Aged 72. An Independent Non-executive Director of the Company, is
the founding and senior partner of PKF, Accountants & Business
Advisers. Mr. Leung obtained his fellowship with Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants in 1973. He is a non-executive director
of Beijing Hong Kong Exchange of Personnel Centre Limited and a
number of listed companies.

Wong Lam OBE, JP

Aged 88. Appointed an Independent Non-executive Director of the
Company in 1995. Mr. Wong is a former member of the Legislative
Council, a former Standing Committee Member of the Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference of Dongguan and a Director of Lung
Cheong International Holdings Ltd..

Lin Keping

Aged 68. Appointed an Independent Non-executive Director of the
Company in 2004. Mr. Lin is an engineer, graduated from Beijing
University of Posts and Telecommunications in 1963. He is a member
of the 8th National Committee of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultation Conference and an executive member of the 8th All-
China Federation of Industry and Commerce. He has served in postal
and telecommunication research institutes, the Ministry of Posts and
Telecommunications, and other organisations for years and was an
executive vice president of China Minsheng Bank Corp Ltd.
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Senior Executives

Kenneth Hung

Aged 40. Joined the Group in 1992. A director of Michel René
Enterprises Ltd. and the Managing Director of Hang Ten Group
Holdings Ltd.. Mr. Hung graduated from the University of Minnesota
in the USA and has extensive experience in the apparel retailing
industry.

Cheng Sai Man, Simon

Aged 58. Received a Bachelor’s degree from the Chinese University
of Hong Kong in 1974 and joined Yangtzekiang Garment Ltd. in the
same year. Mr. Cheng has been General Manager of YGM Clothing
Ltd. since 1988. He has extensive manufacturing and commercial
experience in China.

Cheung Kwok Sum, Sam

Aged 46. Received a Bachelor’s degree from University of Hong Kong
in 1983 and joined Yangtzekiang Garment Ltd. in the same year. Mr.
Cheung is the EDP Manager of the Group.

Leung Wing Fat FCCA, FCPA

Aged 47. Joined the Group as Financial Controller in 1996 and
appointed as Company Secretary of the Company in 1998. Mr. Leung
is a fellow member of The Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. He is responsible for accounting and
company secretarial matters.

Ngai Kwai Yung FCPA (Aust.), CPA, MBA

Aged 49. Appointed Managing Director of Hong Kong Security Printing
Ltd. in 1998. Holds a Bachelor’s degree of Commerce and a Master’s
degree in Business Administration. Mr. Ngai is a fellow member of
CPA Australia and a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants.
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Independent Auditor’s Report ———

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
YGM Trading Limited

(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of YGM Trading
Limited (the “Company”) set out on pages 36 to 120 which comprise
the consolidated and company balance sheets as at 31 March 2007,
the consolidated profit and loss account, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the
year then ended and a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory notes.

Directors’ responsibility for the financial
statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and
the true and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This responsibility includes
designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to
the preparation and the true and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies;
and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the
circumstances.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements
based on our audit. This report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with section 141 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance as to whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

2006/07 Annual Repert—4.
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Auditor’s responsibility (continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation and true and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at
31 March 2007 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building

10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

20 July 2007



Consolidated Profit and Loss Account

(LA % ¥ 31| /R~ Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
Bz T T+ 4= H=+1—HIFZ For the year ended 31 March 2007
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Turnover
Cost of sales/services

Gross profit

Valuation gains on investment property
Other revenue

Other net income

Distribution costs

Administrative expenses

Other operating (expenses)/income

Profit from operations

Finance costs

Share of profits less losses of associates
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries

Profit before taxation
Income tax

Profit for the year

Attributable to:
Equity shareholders of the Company
Minority interests

Profit for the year

Dividends payable to equity
shareholders of the Company
attributable to the year:

Interim dividend declared during the year

Final dividend proposed after the
balance sheet date

Earnings per share
Basic

Diluted

Mo5E 2007 2006
Note $°000 $°000
3&13 1,022,818 1,032,188
(390,827) (393,965)
631,991 638,223
14 18,600 17,500
4 12,652 11,497
4 1,601 10,269
(385,848) (357,901)
(153,600) (158,558)
(5,225) 1,169
120,171 162,199
5(a) (6,992) (4,366)
21,252 32,140
6 - (453)
5 134,431 189,520
7 (14,387) (24,071)
120,044 165,449
10, 29 118,121 161,913
29 1,923 3,536
120,044 165,449

11
19,998 20,109
49,226 49,499
69,224 69,608
12(a) $0.77 $1.05
12(b) N/A $1.04

FA4EZF1205 2 Wit B A B KK Z —
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Statements.

The notes on pages 44 to 120 form part of these financial

2006/07 Annual Report

il




an

= = /= =

(A & # 51| 75~ Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
R-ZFZFELF=H=+—H At 31 March 2007
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Non-current assets

Fixed assets

— Investment properties

— Other property, plant
and equipment

— Interest in leasehold land
held for own use under
operating lease

Intangible assets
Lease premium
Interest in associates
Other financial assets
Deferred tax assets

Current assets

Other financial assets
Trading securities
Inventories

Trade and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables
Bank loans and overdrafts
Current taxation

Net current assets

Total assets less
current liabilities

Non-current liabilities

Bank loans
Deferred tax liabilities

NET ASSETS

—— Consolidated Balance Sheet

M 2007 2006
Note $’000 $’000 $°000 $°000
14(a)
81,900 63,300
135,992 141,041
5,216 5,121
223,108 209,462
15 109,344 110,124
16 9,912 8,927
18 96,864 85,317
19(c) 42,893 43,175
28(b) 57,204 50,047
539,325 507,052
19(c) - 7,528
20 3,977 7,550
21 180,865 176,664
22 138,839 135,272
23 | 193,782 152,550
517,463 479,564
24 179,415 168,600
25 56,499 30,557
28(a) 10,593 13,437
246,507 212,594
270,956 266,970
810,281 774,022
25 49,038 60,905
28(b) 13,989 12,467
63,027 73,372
747,254 700,650

F 2006/07 4 3R
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

(WA & # %] 7~ Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
RZZFZE+F=F=+—H At 31 March 2007

liE=s 2007 2006
Note $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
IR CAPITAL AND RESERVES 29(a)
&z Share capital 76,916 77,342
& Reserves 650,765 604,487
VINNET) Total equity attributable to
P LR shareholders
of the Company 727,681 681,829
DERRER Minority interests 19,573 18,821
AR TOTAL EQUITY 747,254 700,650
EExeR 22 +-F A THZELT Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 20
AL - July 2007.
PR 5 3R ) Chan Sui Kau )
) )
) EE ) Directors
BR 7k %2 ) Chan Wing Sun, Samuel )
) )
FA4E FTEI120HZ it B A HREKZ — The notes on pages 44 to 120 form part of these financial
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Balance Sheet

(A & # 51| 75~ Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
R-ZFZFELF=H=+—H At 31 March 2007

FRBEE

fIEARIKRE
NS

HiH 5 EE
EEHBEE

REBEE

ZR R AT Y Bl iR
/H\ﬁﬂﬁﬁkﬁﬁ
%H&%rﬂ&ﬁf@ﬁﬁuﬁk
RehREEFEY

REBAE

JE A BR R Se EL M JRE A5 30
AHEN TR

hBEEFE
REERRBEE

FRBDEE
EEBBERR
EEFE
AR

L@
G

A

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment

Investments in subsidiaries
Interest in associates
Other financial assets
Deferred tax assets

Current assets

Current tax recoverable
Other financial assets
Trading securities

Trade and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables
Current tax payable

Net current assets

Total assets less current
liabilities

Non-current liability

Deferred tax liabilities

NET ASSETS

CAPITAL AND RESERVES

Share capital
Reserves

TOTAL EQUITY

M 2007 2006
Note $’000 $’000 $°000 $°000
14(b) 758 134
17 503,339 409,416
18 17,315 17,315
19(c) 33,954 34,671
28(b) - 336
555,366 461,872
28(a) - 245
19(c) - 7,528
20 3,977 5,125
22 2,012 1,827
23 83,393 88,498
89,382 103,223
24 11,583 5,636
28(a) 272 -
11,855 5,636
77,527 97,587
632,893 559,459
28(b) 65 -
632,828 559,459
29(b)
76,916 77,342
555,912 482,117
632,828 559,459

EFEEeN ST+ F+AE - TEZAELF Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 20

AR o July 2007.
PR 5 2R ) Chan Sui Kau )

) )

) BE ) Directors
BR K 52 ) Chan Wing Sun, Samuel )

) )

BUBEEI20E 2 MEBANEREZ —
H1 -

F 2006/07 4 3R
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The notes on pages 44 to 120 form part of these financial
statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity ———
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(LA % ¥ 31| /R~ Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
Bz T T+ 4= H=+1—HIFZ For the year ended 31 March 2007

Total equity at 1 April

Net income/(expense)

recognised directly

in equity

Exchange differences on
translation of financial
statements of overseas
subsidiaries

Share of exchange reserve
of associates

Share of share option reserve
of associates

Write back of minority
interests on disposal of
interest in subsidiaries

Net income/(expense) for
the year recognised
directly in equity

Net profit for the year

Total recognised income and
expense for the year

Attributable to:

— Equity shareholders of the
Company

— Minority interests

Dividends declared or approved
during the year attributable to:
— Equity shareholders of the
Company
— Minority interests

Movements in equity arising
from capital transactions:
Shares repurchased
— par value
— premium paid
Shares issued under share

option scheme

Total equity at 31 March

Bt 2007 2006

Note $°000 $°000 $’000 $’000
700,650 607,073
29 2,136 (5,438)
29 355 469
29 - 703
29 - 845
2,491 (3,421)
29 120,044 165,449
122,535 162,028

120,797 158,216

1,738 3,812

122,535 162,028

11

(69,497) (66,538)

29 (986) (1,407)
(70,483) (67,945)

29

(426) (39)

(5,022) (770)

29 - 303
(5,448) (508)
747,254 700,650

FAEZF120H 2 Wit B A BEHRKZ —

B 17 o

The notes on pages 44 to 120 form part of these financial
Statements.
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(A & # 51| 75~ Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
Bz T T+ 4= H=+1—HIFZ Forthe year ended 31 March 2007
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Operating activities
Profit before taxation

Adjustments for:

Net valuation gains
on investment properties

Depreciation

Amortisation of land lease
premium for property
held for own use

Amortisation of intangible
assets

Finance costs

Dividend income from
investments

Bank interest income

Other interest income

Share of profits less losses
of associates

Net gain on disposal of
land and building

Net loss on disposal of
other fixed assets

Loss on disposal of
subsidiaries

Net realised and unrealised
loss on trading securities

Foreign exchange gain

Operating profit before
changes in working capital

Increase in inventories

Increase in debtors, bills
receivable, deposits and
prepayments

Decrease/(increase) in
amounts due from related
companies

Increase in creditors and
accrued charges

Increase/(decrease) in bills
payable

Increase in amounts due to
related companies

Consolldated Cash Flow Statement

M 2007 2006
Note $’000 $’000 $°000 $°000

134,431 189,520
(18,600) (17,500)
27,066 22 304
138 310
780 780
6,992 4,366
(406) (404)
(5,587) (3,284)
(1,910) (1,921)
(21,252) (32,140)
(747) -
223 2,037

- 453
1,138 3,840
(3,836) (3,815)
118,430 164,546
(4,201) (44,878)
(4,686) (23,429)
1,119 (1,564)
2,789 22 581
5,874 (7,150)

2,152

2,218

F 2006/07 4 3R
H:
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
(WA & # %] 7%~ Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

HE_ZTLT+ = H=+1—HI FZ Forthe year ended 31 March 2007
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Cash generated from
operations

Tax paid
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid
Overseas tax paid

Net cash generated from
operating activities

Investing activities

Payment for the purchase of
fixed assets

Proceeds from redemption
of the financial assets

Proceeds from disposal of
fixed assets

Payment for the purchase of
trading securities

Net cash outflow in respect
of the disposal of
subsidiaries

Proceeds from disposal of
interest in associates

Proceeds from disposal of
trading securities

Decrease in deposits with
banks and financial
institutions maturing
after three months at
acquisition

Dividends received from
an associate

Bank interest received

Other interest received

Dividends received from
investment in securities

Net cash generated from
investing activities

Bt 2007 2006
Note $°000 $°000 $'000 $'000
121,477 112,324
(14,538) (19,892)
(5,738) (9,859)
101,201 82,573
(20,883) (33,422)
7,528 -
1,946 87
- (14,111)
- (413)
- 10,600
2,435 34,235
- 20,000
10,060 8,017
5,587 3,284
1,910 2,273
406 404
8,989 30,954

2006/07 Annual Re%ﬂ—z‘
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
(A & 1 21| 75~ Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

B ZE_FTZT+ 4= H=+1—HIFZ Forthe year ended 31 March 2007

liEss 2007 2006
Note $°000 $°000 $'000 $'000
A& EE Financing activities
A B Payment for repurchase
of shares 29(c)(ii) (5,448) (809)
FTIZIRITER Proceeds from new bank
PIEEEe] loans 49,831 86,454
EEIRITER Repayment of bank loans (39,147) (61,890)
RIRIE AR Rt &) Proceeds from shares
BITIR D FT1S RIR issued under share
option scheme 29(c)(iii) - 303
B EMEERA Other borrowing costs paid (6,992) (4,366)
ERAQTER Dividends paid to equity
AR A% B shareholders of the
Company 11 (69,497) (66,538)
B DERERE Dividends paid to minority
shareholders 29 (986) (1,407)
R EE T A Net cash used in financing
HE&FE activities (72,239) (48,253)
HeRRESZEEY Net increase in cash and
R EE cash equivalents 37,951 65,274
RUAE—BZEE Cash and cash equivalents
RREEZEY at 1 April 152,550 86,642
IMEERESH 2 HE Effect of foreign exchange
rates changes (110) 634
R=A=+—RHA2Z Cash and cash equivalents
BHERBESEEY at 31 March 23 190,391 152,550

FA4RZF1208 2 it B A &K < —

#in e

The notes on pages 44 to 120 form part of these financial
statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(B 5B A5 58 » 19 L% # 51| 7R~ Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
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1 Significant accounting policies

(@)

(b)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) which collective term
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“HKASSs”) and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong
and the requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. These financial statements also comply with
the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“SEHK”). A summary
of the significant accounting policies adopted by the
Group is set out below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs
that are first effective or available for early adoption for
the current accounting period of the Group and the
Company. Note 2 provides information on the changes
in accounting policies resulting from initial application of
these developments to the extent that they are relevant
to the Group for the current and prior accounting periods
reflected in these financial statements.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2007 comprise the Company and its
subsidiaries (together referred to as the “Group”) and the
Group’s interest in associates.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis except
as set out in the accounting policies below.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and various other factors
that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances,
the results of which form the basis of making the judgements
about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

2006/07 Annual Repor—244.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(B 5B A5 5) - 19 L% # 51| 7R~ Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

1 FTESTBE #®)
(b) BIBHEZHAEEE (&)

HEREEBRRDVRSEEER
Bl - @t EE 2B IRNEEER
FRERT 2 B (M EFTE R B XM
) SERTHIFE R R R EA A (i
CHEZ =R LP SN
FER -

ERECREBE BB REER
FAELYE A BRREEAY
Z2HE  URERETEER
KREAFABRRBRZGHEZRE
5T FE 53578 o

(c) KB RARZEHEFE
MEBAREXINAKEEH ZE
B-EBEASEAEEH —EEE
ZHBRBEBRRMEELZBH
Bt RITFEIEHIRE o FFEES
BESFMREATEZEER

EHE o

MBRARKERFHEHERS
EHAGAMBHREAN  BEEE
IR LERLE SEARARFREZ
BHEkRS  REEARAREZ
RGMEEZERKRERAF -
BREmEGEMBHRRE2ER
He RERARRBZRZMEL
Z AR R HE R B IR Y s A
Rz AEE  EIRVRER
BRI TBERFEREZEBR -

Wsﬁﬂm wi

1

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements

(c)

(continued)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of
HKFRSs that have significant effect on the financial
statements and estimates with a significant risk of material
adjustment in the next year are discussed in note 35.

Subsidiaries and controlled enterprises

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. Control
exists when the Group has the power to govern the
financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain
benefits from its activities. In assessing control, potential
voting rights that presently are exercisable are taken into
account.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that
control commences until the date that control ceases.
Intra-group balances and transactions and any unrealised
profits arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in full in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group transactions
are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains but
only to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.



B R 3R AR P R

Notes to the Financial Statements
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

(c)

(d)

Subsidiaries and controlled enterprises (continued)

Minority interests represent the portion of the net assets
of subsidiaries attributable to interests that are not owned
by the Company, whether directly or indirectly through
subsidiaries, and in respect of which the Group has not
agreed any additional terms with the holders of those
interests which would result in the Group as a whole
having a contractual obligation in respect of those
interests that meets the definition of a financial liability.
Minority interests are presented in the consolidated
balance sheet within equity, separately from equity
attributable to the equity shareholders of the Company.
Minority interests in the results of the Group are presented
on the face of the consolidated profit and loss account
as an allocation of the total profit or loss for the year
between minority interests and the equity shareholders
of the Company.

Where losses applicable to the minority exceed the
minority’s interest in the equity of a subsidiary, the excess,
and any further losses applicable to the minority, are
charged against the Group’s interest except to the extent
that the minority has a binding obligation to, and is able
to, make additional investment to cover the losses. |If
the subsidiary subsequently reports profits, the Group’s
interest is allocated all such profits until the minority’s
share of losses previously absorbed by the Group has
been recovered.

In the Company’s balance sheet, an investment in a
subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment losses (see
note 1(Kk)).

Associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group or Company
has significant influence, but not control or joint control,
over its management, including participation in the
financial and operating policy decisions.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

(d) Associates (continued)

(e)

An investment in an associate is accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements under the equity
method and is initially recorded at cost and adjusted
thereafter for the post acquisition change in the Group’s
share of the associate’s net assets. The consolidated
profit and loss account includes the Group’s share of the
post-acquisition, post-tax results of the associates for
the year, including any impairment of goodwiill relating to
the interests in associates recognised for the year (see
notes 1(e) and 1(K)).

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in
the associate, the Group’s interest is reduced to nil and
recognition of further losses is discontinued except to
the extent that the Group has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of
the associate. For this purpose, the Group’s interest in
the associate is the carrying amount of the investment
under the equity method together with the Group’s long-
term interests that in substance form part of the Group’s
net investment in the associate.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associates are eliminated to
the extent of the Group’s interest in the associate, except
where unrealised losses provide evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred, in which case they
are recognised immediately in the consolidated profit and
loss account.

In the Company’s balance sheet, its investments in
associates are stated at cost less impairment losses (see
note 1(K)).

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of a business
combination or an investment in an associate over the
Group’s interest in the net fair value of the acquiree’s
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units
and is tested annually for impairment (see note 1(k)). In
respect of associates, the carrying amount of goodwill is
included in the carrying amount of the interest in the
associate.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

(e)

(f)

(9

Goodwill (continued)

Any excess of the Group’s interest in the net fair value of
the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities over the cost of a business combination or an
investment in an associate is recognised immediately in
the consolidated profit and loss account.

On disposal of a cash generating unit or an associate
during the year, any attributable amount of purchased
goodwill is included in the calculation of the profit or loss
on disposal.

Other investments in debt and equity securities

The Group’s and the Company’s policies for investments
in debt and equity securities, other than investments in
subsidiaries and associates are as follows:

Investments in securities held for trading are classified
as current assets. Any attributable transaction costs are
recognised in the profit and loss account as incurred. At
each balance sheet date the fair value is remeasured,
with any resultant gain or loss being recognised in the
consolidated profit and loss account.

Dated debt securities that the Group and/or the Company
have the positive ability and intention to hold to maturity
are classified as held-to-maturity securities. Held-to-
maturity securities are stated in the balance sheet at
amortised cost less impairment losses (see note 1(K)).

Investments in equity securities that do not have a quoted
market price in an active market and whose fair value
cannot be reliably measured are recognised in the balance
sheet at cost less impairment losses (see note 1(k)).

Investments are recognised/derecognised on the date
the Group and/or the Company commits to purchase/
sell the investments or they expire.

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which
are owned or held under a leasehold interest (see note
1(j)) to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

(9)

(h)

Investment properties (continued)

Investment properties are stated in the balance sheet at
fair value. Any gain or loss arising from a change in fair
value or from the retirement or disposal of an investment
property is recognised in the profit and loss account.
Rental income from investment properties is accounted
for as described in note 1(t)(ii).

When the Group holds a property interest under an
operating lease to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation, the interest is classified and accounted for
as an investment property on a property-by-property
basis. Any such property interest which has been
classified as an investment property is accounted for as
if it were held under a finance lease (see note 1(j)), and
the same accounting policies are applied to that interest
as are applied to other investment properties leased under
finance leases. Lease payments are accounted for as
described in note 1(j).

Other property, plant and equipment

The following items of property, plant and equipment are
stated in the balance sheet at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses (see note 1(k)):

— land held under operating leases and buildings
thereon, where the fair values of the leasehold
interest in the land and buildings cannot be
measured separately at the inception of the lease
and the building is not clearly held under an
operating lease (see note 1(j));

—  buildings held for own use which are situated on
leasehold land, where the fair value of the building
could be measured separately from the fair value of
the leasehold land at the inception of the lease (see
note 1(j)); and

—  other items of plant and equipment.

Where land and buildings are transferred from investment
properties, “cost” represents the fair value at the date of
change in use of the properties.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

(h) Other property, plant and equipment (continued)

In preparing these financial statements, the Group has
relied upon the provisions set out in paragraph 80A of
HKAS 16, “Property, plant and equipment” issued by
the HKICPA, with the effect that fair value of investment
property transferred to land and buildings in prior years
has been treated as the deemed cost of those land and
buildings at the date of transfer. Such previously revalued
land and buildings have not been revalued to fair value
at the balance sheet date and are stated at deemed cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses
and will not be revalued in future years.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of
an item of property, plant and equipment are determined
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the item and are recognised in
the profit and loss account on the date of retirement or
disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment, less their estimated
residual value, if any, using the straight-line method over
their estimated useful lives as follows:

—  Leasehold land is depreciated on a straight-line
basis over the remaining term of the lease.

—  Buildings situated on leasehold land are depreciated
over the shorter of the unexpired term of the lease
and their estimated useful lives, being no more than
50 years after the date of completion.

—  Plant and machinery over 10 years.

- Leasehold improvements, motor vehicles, furniture
and equipment between 2 to 10 years.

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost or valuation of the
item is allocated on a reasonable basis between the parts
and each part is depreciated separately. Both the useful
life of an asset and its residual value, if any, are reviewed
annually.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

(i)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

()  Trademarks

Trademarks acquired by the Group with an indefinite
estimated useful economic life are stated in the
balance sheet at cost less accumulated impairment
losses (see note 1(k)). Expenditure on internally
generated brands is recognised as an expense in
the period in which it is incurred.

(i) Licences

Licences acquired by the Group with a finite
estimated useful economic life are stated in the
balance sheet at cost less accumulated amortisation
and impairment losses (see note 1(k)).

Amortisation of licences is charged to the profit and
loss account on a straight-line basis over the period
to which the licence relates.

(i)  Lease premiums

Lease premiums paid by the Group with an indefinite
estimated useful economic life are stated in the
balance sheet at cost less accumulated impairment
losses (see note 1(K)).

Both the period and method of amortisation are reviewed
annually.

Intangible assets are not amortised while their useful lives
are assessed to be indefinite. Any conclusion that the
useful life of an intangible asset is indefinite is reviewed
annually to determine whether events and circumstances
continue to support the indefinite useful life assessment
for that asset. If they do not, the change in the useful life
assessment from indefinite to finite is accounted for
prospectively from the date of change and in accordance
with the policy for amortisation of intangible assets with
finite lives as set out above.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

0

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group
determines that the arrangement conveys a right to use
a specific asset or assets for an agreed period of time in
return for a payment or a series of payments. Such a
determination is made based on an evaluation of the
substance of the arrangement and is regardless of
whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a lease.

0)

Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by Group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as being held
under finance leases. Leases which do not transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
to the Group are classified as operating leases, with
the following exceptions:

property held under operating leases that
would otherwise meet the definition of an
investment property is classified as an
investment property on a property-by-property
basis and, if classified as investment property,
is accounted for as if held under a finance lease
(see note 1(g)); and

land held for own use under an operating lease,
the fair value of which cannot be measured
separately from the fair value of a building
situated thereon at the inception of the lease,
is accounted for as being held under a finance
lease, unless the building is also clearly held
under an operating lease. For these purposes,
the inception of the lease is the time that the
lease was first entered into by the Group, or
taken over from the previous lessee.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

()

Leased assets (continued)

(i

)

Assets acquired under finance leases

Where the Group acquires the use of assets under
finance leases, the amounts representing the fair
value of the leased asset, or, if lower, the present
value of the minimum lease payments, of such
assets are included in fixed assets. Depreciation is
provided at rates which write off the cost or valuation
of the assets over the term of the relevant lease or,
where it is likely the Group will obtain ownership of
the asset, the life of the asset. Impairment losses
are accounted for in accordance with the accounting
policy as set out in note 1(k).

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases
are charged to the profit and loss account in equal
instalments over the accounting periods covered
by the lease term, except where an alternative basis
is more representative of the pattern of benefits to
be derived from the leased asset. Lease incentives
received are recognised in the profit and loss
account as an integral part of the aggregate net
lease payments made. Contingent rentals are
charged to the profit and loss account in the
accounting period in which they are incurred.

The cost of acquiring land under an operating lease
is amortised on a straight-line basis over the period
of the lease term except where the property is
classified as an investment property (see note 1(g)).
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

(k)

Impairment of assets

M

Impairment of investments in debt and equity
securities and other receivables

Investments in debt and equity securities and other
current and non-current receivables that are stated
at cost or amortised cost are reviewed at each
balance sheet date to determine whether there is
objective evidence of impairment. If any such
evidence exists, an impairment loss is determined
and recognised as follows:

—  For unquoted equity securities and current
receivables that are carried at cost, the
impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the carrying amount of the financial
asset and the estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the current market rate of return
for a similar financial asset where the effect of
discounting is material. Impairment losses for
equity securities are not reversed.

—  For trade and other current receivables and
other financial assets carried at amortised cost,
the impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash
flows, discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition of
these assets), where the effect of discounting
is material.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be linked objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised, the
impairment loss is reversed through the profit
and loss account. A reversal of an impairment
loss shall not result in the asset’s carrying
amount exceeding that which would have been
determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

(k)

Impairment of assets (continued)

(i

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at each balance sheet date to identify
indications that the following assets may be impaired
or, except in the case of goodwill, an impairment
loss previously recognised no longer exists or may
have decreased:

—  property, plant and equipment (other than
properties carried at revalued amounts);

—  pre-paid interests in leasehold land classified
as being held under an operating lease;

— intangible assets;

— investments in subsidiaries and associates;
and

- goodwill.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. In addition, for goodwill and
intangible assets that have indefinite useful lives, the
recoverable amount is estimated annually whether
or not there is any indication of impairment.

—  Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the
greater of its net selling price and value in use.
In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the asset.
Where an asset does not generate cash inflows
largely independent of those from other assets,
the recoverable amount is determined for the
smallest group of assets that generates cash
inflows independently (i.e. a cash-generating
unit).
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

(k)

Impairment of assets (continued)

(il

)

Impairment of other assets (continued)

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in the profit
and loss account whenever the carrying
amount of an asset, or the cash-generating
unit to which it belongs, exceeds its
recoverable amount. Impairment losses
recognised in respect of cash-generating units
are allocated to reduce the carrying amount of
the assets in the unit (or group of units) on a
pro rata basis, except that the carrying value
of an asset will not be reduced below its
individual fair value less costs to sell, or value
in use, if determinable.

Reversals of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount. A reversal
of an impairment loss is limited to the asset’s
carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years. Reversals of
impairment losses are credited to the profit and
loss account in the year in which the reversals
are recognised. An impairment loss in respect
of goodwill is not reversed.

Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, the
Group is required to prepare an interim financial
report in compliance with HKAS 34, “Interim financial
reporting”, in respect of the first six months of the
financial year. At the end of the interim period, the
Group applies the same impairment testing,
recognition, and reversal criteria as it would at the
end of the financial year (see notes 1(k)(i) and (ii).
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

(k)

U

(m)

Impairment of assets (continued)

(i) Interim financial reporting and impairment
(continued)

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period
in respect of goodwill, available-for-sale equity
securities and unquoted equity securities carried at
cost are not reversed in a subsequent period. This
is the case even if no loss, or a smaller loss, would
have been recognised had the impairment been
assessed only at the end of the financial year to
which the interim period relates.

Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the FIFO formula and comprises
all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make
the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in
which the related revenue is recognised. The amount of
any write-down of inventories to net realisable value and
all losses of inventories are recognised as an expense in
the period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount
of any reversal of any write-down of inventories is
recognised as a reduction in the amount of inventories
recognised as an expense in the period in which the
reversal occurs.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair
value and thereafter stated at amortised cost less
impairment losses for bad and doubtful debts (see note
1(k)), except where the receivables are interest-free loans
made to related parties without any fixed repayment terms
or the effect of discounting would be immaterial. In such
cases, the receivables are stated at cost less impairment
losses for bad and doubtful debts (see note 1(K)).
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

(n)

(o)

(p)

(q)

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair
value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to
initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated
at amortised cost with any difference between the amount
initially recognised and redemption value being
recognised in the profit and loss account over the period
of the borrowings, together with any interest and fees
payable, using the effective interest method.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair
value. Except for financial guarantee liabilities measured
in accordance with note 1(s)(i), trade and other payables
are subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case
they are stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and
on hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions and short-term, highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value, having been within three months of maturity at
acquisition. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on
demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management are also included as a component of cash
and cash equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated
cash flow statement.

Employee benefits

(i)  Short term employee benefits and contributions to
defined contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans and the cost of non-monetary benefits are
accrued in the year in which the associated services
are rendered by employees. Where payment or
settlement is deferred and the effect would be
material, these amounts are stated at their present
values.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

(q) Employee benefits (continued)

(i

(i)

Share based payments

The fair value of share options granted to employees
is recognised as an employee cost with a
corresponding increase in a capital reserve within
equity. The fair value is measured at grant date
using the binomial lattice model, taking into account
the terms and conditions upon which the options
were granted. Where the employees have to meet
vesting conditions before becoming unconditionally
entitled to the options, the total estimated fair value
of the options is spread over the vesting period,
taking into account the probability that the options
will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of options
that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any adjustment
to the cumulative fair value recognised in prior years
is charged/credited to the profit and loss account
for the year of the review, unless the original
employee expenses qualify for recognition as an
asset, with a corresponding adjustment to the
capital reserve. On vesting date, the amount
recognised as an expense is adjusted to reflect the
actual number of options that vest (with a
corresponding adjustment to the capital reserve)
except where forfeiture is only due to not achieving
vesting conditions that relate to the market price of
the Company’s shares. The equity amount is
recognised in the capital reserve until either the
option is exercised (When it is transferred to the share
premium account) or the option expires (when it is
released directly to retained profits).

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised when, and only
when, the Group demonstrably commits itself to
terminate employment or to provide benefits as a
result of voluntary redundancy by having a detailed
formal plan which is without realistic possibility of
withdrawal.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

(r)

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities
are recognised in the profit and loss account, except to
the extent that they relate to items recognised directly in
equity, in which case they are recognised in equity.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date, and any
adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax
bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax
losses.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities and all deferred tax assets, to the extent that it
is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilised, are recognised.
Future taxable profits that may support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences include those that will arise from the reversal
of existing taxable temporary differences, provided those
differences relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either
in the same period as the expected reversal of the
deductible temporary difference or in periods into which
a tax loss arising from the deferred tax asset can be
carried forward. The same criteria are adopted when
determining whether existing taxable temporary
differences support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from unused tax losses and credits, that is, those
differences are taken into account if they relate to the
same taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and
are expected to reverse in a period, or periods, in which
the tax loss or credit can be utilised.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

(r)

Income tax (continued)

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured
based on the expected manner of realisation or
settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and
liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted
at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed
at each balance sheet date and is reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available to allow the related tax benefit to be
utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the extent
that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution
of dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the
related dividends is recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset
against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets
against deferred tax liabilities if the Company or the Group
has the legally enforceable right to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and the following
additional conditions are met:

— inthe case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on a
net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or

— inthe case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if
they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either:

—  the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred
tax liabilities or assets are expected to be
settled or recovered, intend to realise the
current tax assets and settle the current tax
liabilities on a net basis or realise and settle
simultaneously.
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(s) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and

contingent liabilities

M

Financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the
issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to make specified
payments to reimburse the beneficiary of the
guarantee (the “holder”) for a loss the holder incurs
because a specified debtor fails to make payment
when due in accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the
fair value of the guarantee (being the transaction
price, unless the fair value can otherwise be reliably
estimated) is initially recognised as deferred income
within trade and other payables. Where
consideration is received or receivable for the
issuance of the guarantee, the consideration is
recognised in accordance with the Group’s policies
applicable to that category of asset. Where no such
consideration is received or receivable, an
immediate expense is recognised in the profit and
loss account on initial recognition of any deferred
income.

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised as
deferred income is amortised in the profit and loss
account over the term of the guarantee as income
from financial guarantees issued. In addition,
provisions are recognised in accordance with note
1(s)(iii) if and when (i) it becomes probable that the
holder of the guarantee will call upon the Group
under the guarantee, and (i) the amount of that claim
on the Group is expected to exceed the amount
currently carried in trade and other payables in
respect of that guarantee; i.e. the amount initially
recognised, less accumulated amortisation.
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(s) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and

contingent liabilities (continued)

(i

)

Contingent liabilities acquired in business
combinations

Contingent liabilities acquired as part of a business
combination are initially recognised at fair value,
provided the fair value can be reliably measured.
After their initial recognition at fair value, such
contingent liabilities are recognised at the higher of
the amount initially recognised, less accumulated
amortisation where appropriate, and the amount
that would be determined in accordance with note
1(s)(iii). Contingent liabilities acquired in a business
combination that cannot be reliably fair valued are
disclosed in accordance with note 1(s)(iii).

Other provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group or the Company
has a legal or constructive obligation arising as a
result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made.
Where the time value of money is material, provisions
are stated at the present value of the expenditure
expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
future events are also disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

(t) Revenue recognition

Provided it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable,
can be measured reliably, revenue is recognised in the
profit and loss account as follows:

M

(i)

)

Sale of goods

Revenue arising from the sale of garments and
printing products is recognised when goods are
delivered to the customer which is taken to be the
point in time when the customer has accepted the
goods and the related risks and rewards of
ownership. Revenue excludes value added tax or
other sales taxes and is after deduction of any trade
discounts.

Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating leases is
recognised in the profit and loss account in equal
instalments over the periods covered by the lease
term, except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived
from the use of the leased asset. Lease incentives
granted are recognised in the profit and loss account
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease
payments receivable. Contingent rentals are
recognised as income in the accounting period in
which they are earned.

Royalty income

Royalty income is recognised in accordance with
the substance of the relevant agreements.

Dividends

—  Dividend income from unlisted investments is
recognised when the shareholder’s right to
receive payment is established.

—  Dividend income from listed investments is
recognised when the share price of the
investment goes ex-dividend.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

() Revenue recognition (continued)

(v) Interest income

— Interest income from dated debt securities
intended to be held to maturity is recognised
as it accrues, as adjusted by the amortisation
of the premium or discount on acquisition, so
as to achieve a constant rate of return over
the period from the date of purchase to the
date of maturity.

— Interest income from bank deposits is
recognised as if accrues using the effective
interest method.

(u) Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet date.
Exchange gains and losses are recognised in the profit
and loss account.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies that are stated at fair value are
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
dates the fair value was determined.

The results of foreign operations are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the exchange rates approximating the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates of the
transactions. Balance sheet items are translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the balance sheet date. The resulting exchange
differences are recognised directly in a separate
component of equity. Goodwill arising on consolidation
of a foreign operation acquired before 1 January 2005 is
translated at the foreign exchange rate that applied at
the date of acquisition of the foreign operation.
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)

(iv)
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1

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(u) Translation of foreign currencies (continued)

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount
of the exchange differences recognised in equity which
relate to that foreign operation is included in the
calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.

(v) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are expensed in the profit and loss
account in the period in which they are incurred.

(w) Related parties

For the purposes of these financial statements, parties
are considered to be related to the Group if:

(il

)

(iv)

(vi)

the party has the ability, directly or indirectly, through
one or more intermediaries to control the Group or
exercise significant influence over the Group in
making financial and operating policy decisions, or
has joint control over the Group;

the Group and the party are subject to common
control;

the party is an associate of the Group or a joint
venture in which the Group is a venturer;

the party is a member of key management personnel
of the Group or the Group’s parent, or a close family
member of such an individual, or is an entity under
the control, joint control or significant influence of
such individuals;

the party is a close family member of a party referred
toin () or is an entity under the control, joint control
or significant influence of such individuals; or

the party is a post-employment benefit plan which
is for the benefit of employees of the Group or of
any entity that is a related party of the Group.

2006/07 Annual Re%ﬂ—é‘
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

(w) Related parties (continued)

x)

Close family members of an individual are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that individual in their dealings with the
entity.

Segment reporting

A segment is a distinguishable component of the Group
that is engaged either in providing products or services
(business segment), or in providing products or services
within a particular economic environment (geographical
segment), which is subject to risks and rewards that are
different from those of other segments.

In accordance with the Group’s internal financial reporting
system, the Group has chosen business segment
information as the primary reporting format and
geographical segment information as the secondary
reporting format for the purposes of these financial
statements.

Segment revenue, expenses, results, assets and liabilities
include items directly attributable to a segment as well
as those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis to
that segment. For example, segment assets may include
inventories, trade receivables and property, plant and
equipment. Segment revenue, expenses, assets, and
liabilities are determined before intra-group balances and
intra-group transactions are eliminated as part of the
consolidation process, except to the extent that such
intra-group balances and transactions are between
Group entities within a single segment. Inter-segment
pricing is based on similar terms as those available to
other external parties.

Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred
during the period to acquire segment assets (both
tangible and intangible) that are expected to be used for
more than one period.

Unallocated items mainly comprise financial and
corporate assets, interest-bearing loans, borrowings, tax
balances, corporate and financing expenses.



B R 3R AR P R

Notes to the Financial Statements
(B 5B HT 1558 » 5 LA 8 # 51 7R~ Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

B BRKREE

EREEHMASEHHE TE2HRE
BRI 2 BAEMBRSER - URAE
Bz AH & E R B R AR A 1R
B®M -

AEBRARARAZFRLAEE N
ARBBBZE2HRBETZERY
BREENR 2 GHEEK - CRME
F1EAGL - AHEFHELETES
AAHERAZEEAYM B RS ELR
TEEHEEAYBRRTIRBNE
ARERBEAZEE -

ANEE I EERTAR AN HEE
AREMZFHER S RE (R EFI6
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BEEER) FEo0RE H Y I IEERE
EFBKBEAR  WAFEEREAS
WEtE o MBERISVZRAFEER
AE HBREERESVERZKERE
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Changes in accounting policies

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that
are first effective or available for early adoption for the current
accounting period of the Group.

Note 1 summarises the accounting policies of the Group and
the Company after the adoption of these developments to
the extent that they are relevant to the Group and the
Company. The adoption of these developments did not result
in significant changes in accounting policies for the current
and prior accounting periods reflected in these financial
statements.

The Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation
that is not yet effective for the current accounting period (see
note 36).

Financial guarantees issued (Amendments to HKAS 39,
Financial instruments: Recognition and measurement: Financial
gquarantee contracts)

In prior years, financial guarantees issued by the Group were
disclosed as contingent liabilities in accordance with HKFRS
4, Insurance contracts and HKAS 37, Provisions, contingent
liabilities and contingent assets. No provisions were made in
respect of these guarantees unless it was more likely than not
that the guarantee would be called upon.

With effect from 1 April 2006, in order to comply with the
amendments to HKAS 39 in respect of financial guarantee
contracts, the Group has changed its accounting policy for
financial guarantees issued. Under the new policy, financial
guarantees issued are accounted for as financial liabilities under
HKAS 39 and measured initially at fair value, where the fair
value can be reliably measured. Subsequently, they are
measured at the higher of the amount initially recognised, less
accumulated amortisation, and the amount of the provision, if
any, that should be recognised in accordance with HKAS 37.
Further details of the new policy are set out in note 1(s)(i).

2006/07 Annual Report
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BB EREE (&)

R HER (BB S ERE395 &
AA[E@ TA Rkt E]  HFK
ﬂ;{% =] /v-/g) (/é,%)

RMZEABRITEHBE_FZT
FR-_FTLF-A=T-HBLF
AEEBZGMRARFEAEER
EFERAZEEFEBRTE -

i\“?)TEIDI'

BEXRE
RARZEBEBARERBRRIEH
ERRY - SMHBARRBERAZ

FTEXBARMBHRRENTAEZSR
120K °

EEBREETIREPZAMERF
B EMEEMRBIINAEPZES
WA~ BN 5 B B8 AR 75 M A il am HE 3%
WA - FRAEEEFETRR LA
BEZRAERN ZHBET :

2007 2006

$°000 $'000

AR EH & Sales of garments 917,708 929,265
HEHEBNIERAWE  Royalty and related income 61,164 60,146
ENRI X 7 B R 7% Printing and related services 36,214 33,799
FEMERSRA Gross rental income from investment properties 7,732 7,288
bz s E Sales of cosmetic products - 1,690
1,022,818 1,032,188

Changes in accounting policies (continued)

Financial guarantees issued (Amendments to HKAS 39,
Financial instruments: Recognition and measurement: Financial
guarantee contracts) (continued)

The adoption of this accounting policy has not affected the
Group’s profit for the years ended 31 March 2006 and 2007,
or the Company’s and the Group’s net assets as at those year
end dates.

Turnover

The principal activities of the Company are investment holding
and the provision of management services. The principal
activities of the subsidiaries and associates are set out on
pages 117 to 120 to the financial statements.

Turnover represents the aggregate of net invoiced value of
sales to and royalty and rental income from external customers,
income from printing and related services and the wholesale
of cosmetic products. The amount of each significant category
of revenue recognised in turnover during the year is as follows:
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4 Hb W AR U =EFHE

5

2007 2006
$°000 $'000
EMgA Other revenue
1BERER Alteration charges 146 187
SR1TH B A Bank interest income 5,587 3,284
E A B A Other interest income 1,910 1,921
W B (E R Claims receivable 860 1,546
FHEEZREWA  Dividend income from listed securities 406 404
HAth Others 3,743 4,155
12,652 11,497
E iz F5E Other net income
b W) F 7R Net exchange gain 1,864 12,982
HE L REFESE Y Net gain on disposal
e FEE of land and building * 747 -
HEBTEEESE Y Netloss on disposal
518558 of fixed assets (223) (2,037)
BEEBFEL DI Net realised and unrealised loss
RARBIREEFE on trading securities (1,138) (3,840)
EHAh, Others 351 3,164
1,601 10,269

4 Other revenue and net income

RZZEZEZRF+—A+H  Yampa
Investments Limited (A2 7] 2 —EHERR])
H—ZBUFE=FF L EEE RS UHE
NREBERFIEHEZ —MAE  AHERE
1,800,000 JC ° BN —EZNF+=AN
HEmk < &5 747,000 T (BMNBREME
17,0007T) REBE-ZT+F=A=+—HIt
FEZIFEBERERNER °

BR Bt AU i A
BB AHEFEAR S (GHA)

2007 2006
$°000 $'000
BhE R (a) Finance costs
AR RFREBE Interest on bank advances and
BB ZIRITER other borrowings wholly repayable
R EMERFE within five years 6,992 4,366

On 16 November 20086, a subsidiary of the Company, Yampa Investments
Limited, entered into a sale and purchase agreement with an independent
third party to dispose of an apartment in Percival Street, Hong Kong, for
a total consideration of $1,800,000. The agreement was completed on
8 December 2006 and a profit of $747,000, net of legal fees of
$17,000, was recognised in the consolidated profit and loss account
for the year ended 31 March 2007.

5 Profit before taxation

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting):
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5 BR®B AR (H&)
BREBAEFBHE (5 A) (M)

(b) BIpkA*

REEFGRIK
FTElZ
Fe IER
HAbiaF

5 Profit before taxation (continued)

(continued)

(b) Staff costs*

Contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans

Salaries, wages and
other benefits

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

2007 2006
$°000 $000
14,953 10,217
196,929 181,011
211,882 191,228

RSB BERMEFSERITRE

ZEEHSE o
0 EmIER
el i
HEBEMER
By

(©)

MRS R Bt I 2
HEBE/ (AEFREDE)

which is separately disclosed in note 8.

Other items

Amortisation of licence

Depreciation and amortisation on
owned assets”

Impairment losses/(reversal of impairment
losses) for trade and other receivables

ZE IS Auditors’ remuneration
- RER% - audit services
—EEREMERM - KPMG
—H e - other auditors
— TR — tax services
REHEER" Operating lease charges®
—-&EHE — hire of equipment

-MERE (R4 37,626,000 7T
(ZFZ754F : 31,800,0007T)

ZAHENH)
EEBERAINA
REMEREES

HERXH

FERA (MEF 21(0)8)

— property rentals (including contingent
rental payments of $37,626,000
(2006: $31,800,000))

Share of associates’ taxation

Rentals receivable from investment properties

less direct outgoings
Cost of inventories* (note 21(b))

The above amounts do not include director’s remuneration

2007 2006
$°000 $000
780 780
27,204 22,614
3,596 (2,267)
2,112 1,918
1,854 1,271
524 558
138 3,054
190,315 176,235
8,085 6,636
(4,145) (3,629)
390,827 393,965

FEKAREEEINA MEEBAREEHA
EBHAAERM 225,398,000 L (ZFEX
F : 26,927,0007T) ° BEAZFEINE A LR
SHIEE S EDRIFIR 2 S BB ABEF -

Cost of inventories includes $25,398,000 (2006: $26,927,000) relating
to staff costs, depreciation expenses and operating lease charges, which
amount is also included in the respective total amounts disclosed

separately above or in note 5(b) for each of these types of expenses.
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6 HEMBARER 6 Loss on disposal of subsidiaries
RZZEERFNAZFTNAB » AR F On 29 August 2005, the Company disposed of a 60% interest
AT Z & BAMERELEBESEE in Billion Concept Group Limited and its subsidiaries (“Disposal
BRABNENBAR (HEEE]) group”) for nominal proceeds of $1 realising a net loss on
BO% <z RMBELEERAXRE 2 disposal of $453,000 after writing off amounts owed by the
LEHE AAFBESBEHEBBEFEE Disposal group to the Company. The principal activity of the
453,000 - HESBE X 2XBK AL Disposal group was the sale of cosmetic products.

o on 35 &

7 FBH 7 Income tax
(a) HZEBEZXAMIZHES (a) Taxation in the consolidated profit and loss account
represents:
2007 2006
$°000 $000
FEHIE - BEREHR Current tax - Hong Kong Profits Tax
REEEMH Provision for the year 12,608 17,259
WEEERRE,/ GBE) £#  Under/(over)-provision in respect of prior years 1,543 610)
14,151 16,649
NEAREIE — o Current tax - Overseas | |
ANF S A Provision for the year 4,967 9,808
VAR & R 1 Over-provision in respect of prior years (1,675) (649)
3,292 9,159
EEBE Deferred tax
EENEDERTEER Origination and reversal of temporary differences (3,056) (2,094)
AEREERTEA—H Effect of decrease in tax rate on deferred tax
ELRIBEG®R s ZE balances at 1 April - 357
(3,056) (1,737)
14,387 24,071
—ERAF2REBNNEREFHR The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for 2007 is
KEFEEFTRERB M Z217.5% calculated at 17.5% (2006: 17.5%) of the estimated
(ZZETRF - 17.5%) 51 & /8N assessable profits for the year. Taxation for overseas
B8 A B) 2 B 38 RI DA AR B8 B 5k i@ subsidiaries is charged at the appropriate current rates
RZBITMEFE - of taxation ruling in the relevant countries.

2006/07 Annual Re%ﬂ—z‘
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7 FIEH @
(a) HABREFAZHEES : (&)

BEREARAME(THE] R
—EELEFE=-_At+ARABEZEA
RERRRELBBZHBELEM
BEE BAINERZHEEMN
BREEHE—REMHZ=-TH "
BE-ZTN\F-A—HEEK-
ZETECEMBHREEHH A
SEGEVBRRIZESHT
BER T 2 FABRME - AR
el R 22 4 5 AR 22 B e 1T BOR Al I
ER - BFUL IR B R AR B
MEEMGREZEAEEZ KRR
MHEE -

(b) FEHXHAES EFREERH

7

Income tax (continued)

(a)

(b)

Taxation in the consolidated profit and loss account
represents: (continued)

Pursuant to the PRC enterprise income tax law passed
by the National People’s Congress of the People’s
Republic of China (“PRC”) on 16 March 2007, the new
enterprise income tax rates for domestic and foreign
enterprises will be unified at 25 per cent effective from 1
January 2008. The impact of this change of the PRC
enterprise income tax rate on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements will depend on detailed
pronouncements that are subsequently issued. Since
the detailed implementation and administrative rules and
regulations have not yet been announced, the future
financial impact of the New Corporate Income Tax Law
on the Group cannot be reasonably estimated at this
stage.

Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting

EtEZHEK profit at applicable tax rates:
2007 2006
$°000 $'000
BB AR A Profit before taxation 134,431 189,520
RRERBERES R Notional tax on profit before taxation,
ZBAREGTER calculated at the rates applicable to
BANEH 2 2R BIE profits in the countries concerned 11,883 20,828
TAHERYE 2 HIBTE Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 6,681 7,942
FIERRMAZ FIET 2 Tax effect of non-taxable revenue (4,045) (3,797)
FRTET AL RNET Effect on opening deferred tax balances resulting
Fristists e & from a decrease in tax rate during the year - 357
EFE 2 BRES Over-provision in respect of prior years (132) (1,259)
ERHIERY Actual tax expense 14,387 24,071
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8 EEM2 8 Directors’ remuneration
RIFEBFBCREHERN D) F161ET | 2 Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 161 of
EEMamT the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance is as follows:
e EUR BREHE
EEHne EMRR BIETA LR “st
Salaries,
allowances
and Retirement
Directors’ benefits Discretionary scheme
fees in kind bonuses contributions Total
2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 | 2007 2006 2007 2006
$°000 $'000 | $°000 $°000 | $°000 $’000 | $°000 $'000 | $°000 $'000
FREmER Chan Sui Kau 30 30 1,463 1,463 1,200 1,200 - - 2,693 2,693
Bz Chan Wing Fui,
Peter 30 30 - - 1,025 1,025 - - 1,055 1,055
Bk&  ChanWing Sun,
Samuel 30 30 2,730 2,730 2,050 2,050 72 72 4882 4,882
FEB#E  Chan Suk Ling,
Shirley 30 30 2,236 2,236 3,000 3,200 72 72 5,338 5,538
{EARE Fu Sing Yam,
William 30 30 1,625 1,625 2,400 2,500 60 60 4115 4,215
A Chan Wing Kee 30 30 - - - - - - 30 30
BACE  ChanWing To 30 30 - - - - - - 30 30
8% Leung Hok Lim 160 160 - - - - - - 160 160
IR Wong Lam 60 60 - - - - - - 60 60
M ¥  LinKeping 60 60 - - - - - - 60 60
490 490 8,054 8,054 9,675 9,975 204 204 | 18,423 18,723

REANABEREAERTETES
ZEREFBREREFERE (B
PetEst &) — 8 MM EF 2778 - K
EINGEFEREBRERTES -

The details of share options granted to certain directors under
the Company’s share option scheme are disclosed under the
paragraph “Share Option Scheme” in the Report of the
Directors and note 27. No share options were granted to the
directors in the current or prior year.

2006/07 Annual Re%ﬂ?‘
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9 BEEME AL
ERMMEEHZALHR  Hf (=R
TAF O REF - AWM HE
WM EESE - HitA L2 S BE

9 Individuals with the highest emoluments

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, four (2006:
four) are directors whose emoluments are disclosed in note
8. The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the other

7 N individual are as follows:
2007 2006
$’000 $'000
e kEMMNE Salaries and other emoluments 910 910
B TEAL Discretionary bonuses 1,100 1,400
RIREFEIHEER Retirement scheme contributions 60 60
2,070 2,370

—f(ZETAF  —f)HegE2
AtzBeBEDT :

$
2,000,001 - 2,500,000

The emoluments of the one (2006: one) individual with the
highest emoluments is within the following band:

2007 2006

A A
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
1 1

10X A EERREMLER

AR EmRRELEGE N BE—
F B AR BB %R K 2 148,314,000
T (ZZZNE ¢ 175,380,0007T) 3
(Mt 5E 5 29(0)E) -

10 Profit attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company

The consolidated profit attributable to equity shareholders of
the Company includes a profit of $148,314,000 (2006:
$175,380,000) which has been dealt with in the financial
statements of the Company (note 29(b)).
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11 R E 11 Dividends
(a) AEEEEZENTFELGER (a) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the
BRERE Company attributable to the year
2007 2006
$°000 $000
BEERRIATERELER  Interim dividend declared and paid of 13 cents
BRI (ZEERE per ordinary share (2006: 13 cents per
LRk eR130) ordinary share) 19,998 20,109
REERERENERSRE  Final dividend proposed after the balance sheet date
EEGEM32M (ZTERFE . of 32 cents per ordinary share (2006: 32 cents
EERER321) per ordinary share) 49,226 49,499
69,224 69,608
REEHEEZD R RBRKRE The final dividend proposed after the balance sheet date
MAELEEHBRAAALE - has not been recognised as a liability at the balance sheet
date.
(b) LEHBEEEELZENTER (b) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the

AEERRRE (ERFAEME

Company attributable to the previous financial year,

B R 1) approved and paid during the year
2007 2006
$000 $'000
LB BEE 2 RERE Final dividend in respect of the previous financial
LERER2I (ERER year, approved and paid during the year,
ERERRN) (ZEERE: of 32 cents per ordinary share (2006: 30 cents
L@k ERaoMl) per ordinary share) 49,499 46,429

2006/07 Annual Re%ﬂ—é‘
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12 R &R
@) SREFEF

12 Earnings per share

(a) Basic earnings per share

EREXABFNBEBRAFTE
AV NUNICTIE Bl S el R el |
118,121,0007C (=TT X F
161,913,000 JT) K& B 8 17 & 3 %
A S 15 8 154,345,9200% & i A%
(ZZEZNE 154,729,206/ L i@

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on
the profit attributable to ordinary equity shareholders of
the Company of $118,121,000 (2006: $161,913,000)
and the weighted average of 154,345,929 ordinary shares
(2006: 154,729,206 ordinary shares) in issue during the
year, calculated as follows:

BIFTE - stEAARLOT :
2007 2006
RAEE B EE
Number of Number of
shares shares
EZERMET I Weighted average number of ordinary shares
REA—BE#TL AR Issued ordinary shares at 1 April 154,684,792 154,738,792
BRERG 252 (HEE29(0)(i)E) Effect of shares repurchased (note 29(c)(i) (338,863) (33,696)
BITFEERE FE Effect of share options exercised
(P E29(c)(ii)8) (note 29(c)i) - 24,110
KEEDEITLBR Weighted average number of ordinary shares
T in issue during the year 154,345,929 154,729,206

(b) ZREFTEF

HE2 -T2 XF=A=1+— ElJJ:
FEZEREERANNERAR
%ﬁﬁﬁ&%ﬂ%ﬁ%ﬁlﬁmms,ooo
TR OE B R o OEF B
155,457 ,578f% - Zg?ft’\ﬁﬁ\%‘&ﬁﬁ
BEEBR Y EIERAERS
HE_ZZ+F=-A=+— EIJJ:
FE O OBEABEHEFE Y
AR o

(b) Diluted earnings per share

The calculation of diluted earnings per share for the year
ended 31 March 2006 was based on the profit
attributable to ordinary equity shareholders of the
Company of $161,913,000 and the weighted average
number of ordinary shares of 155,457,578 shares after
adjusting for the effect of all dilutive potential ordinary
shares. There are no dilutive potential ordinary shares in
existence for the year ended 31 March 2007.

Wﬁﬁﬂ/w F 4
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13

(b) ZREBERF (HF)

EERMET IS (88 Weighted average number of ordinary shares (diluted)

(b) Diluted earnings per share (continued)

2007 2006
R EE ROEE
Number of Number of
shares shares

REEDETLER Weighted average number of ordinary shares

IET9E in issue during the year 154,345,929 154,729,206
RIEREBEARARERE Effect of deemed issue of ordinary shares under

EIEERTLER the Company’s share option scheme for no

& (WHE27R) consideration (note 27) - 728,372

AFEEENLAR Weighted average number of ordinary shares (diluted)

Mg (858) in issue during the year 154,345,929 155,457,578
DEHBE 13 Segment reporting

DEWMEMEZEAEEZEZH XGRS
MEL2M - AREHDBERE AN
SEZAMHBERTEEERK
BHERLSBENHMEEZETELR -

ey il
AEBZETEXBDHMT ¢

- HERK: 4LE TERHEEX
x o

- FEN@EERABWRE  EREER
Wa 2 AR RER -

— HIRIERMEERERS - £ERKEHD
ol EE ah e

- YEHEE HLHEVEXELESW
ARMEBERAEE RS

Segment information is presented in respect of the Group’s
business and geographical segments. Business segment
information is chosen as the primary reporting format because
this is more relevant to the Group’s internal financial reporting.

Business segments

The Group comprises the following main business segments:

—  Sales of garments: the manufacture, retail and wholesale
of garments.

— Royalty and related income: the management and
licensing of a trademark for royalty income.

—  Printing and related services: the manufacture and sale
of printed products.

—  Property rental: the leasing of properties to generate rental

income and gain from the appreciation in the properties’
value in the long term.
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13 7 8| & (®) 13 Segment reporting (continued)

EHB5 B (E) Business segments (continued)
ERIRE BRI R B8z
HERK kB RERE EZEN bE KOE G
Royalty Printing Inter-
Sales of and related | and related Property segment
garments income services rental elimination | Unallocated | Consolidated
2007 2006 | 2007 2006 | 2007 2006 | 2007 2006| 2007 2006 | 2007 2006 | 2007 2006
$000  $000 | $000 $000 | $000 $000 | $000 $000| $000 $000 | $000 $000| $000 $000
RENAEPZ  Rewengfiom
JA external customers 917,708 929265 | 61,64 60146 | 36214 3799 | 7782 7288 - - - 1690 (1,022,818 1,032,188
ReEEs82  ersegment
JA Tevenue - - 822 9| 229 1707 | 6578 77| (9839 (97%) - - - -
a8 Total 917,708 929265 | 61986 60938 | 38483 35506 | 14310 14585 [ (9,639 (9,79 - 1690 (1,022,818 1,032,188
PEEL Segment resut 86,478 141631 | 4934 3816 | 5176 3237 | 26316 23,606 122,004 172,089
AERS Inter-segment
fransactions 2043 3606 (82 (4g) 204 (3,159 (4309) - -
DE S Contrbution from
operations 89421 145087 | 4852 3768 | 5470 3984 | 23161 19,300 122,004 172,089
FOREE Unalocated operating
YRR income and expenses (2,733 (10090)
el Proft rom operations 120471 162,199
FENA Finanoe costs (699 [£,366)
Eland Share of profs less
ilAEE losses of associates A28 34,199 - - - - - - - R0 A2/ R
HERBAT Loss on disposal of
ER subsicries -
FiEH Income tax (14,387)  (24,071)
i Proft after tasation 120044 165,449
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13 B/ E (&) 13 Segment reporting (continued)

EHB5E(E) Business segments (continued)
E7lEE IR
HEMK REBKE TR EZ N KOE &a
Royalty and | Printing and

Sales of related related Property

garments income services rental Unallocated | Consolidated

2007 2006 | 2007 2006 | 2007 2006 | 2007 2006 | 2007 2006 2007 2006

$000 $000| $000 000 | $°000 $000| $000 $'000| $000 $000 | $000 $000
RERFEREE Depreciation and

amortisation for the year 24,182 19,453 - - | 1478 1512 2137 2145 187 284 | 27,984 23304

AHEE Segment assets 328,742 351,195 | 165,707 139,671 | 17,549 16,318 | 146,604 131,168 - - | 658,602 638,252
Nl Interest in associates 02,144 80597 - - - - - - - - | 92144 80597
KONEE Unallocated assets - - - - - - - - | 306,042 267,767 | 306,042 267,767
BELE Total assets 1,056,788 986,616
AHEE Segment liabllties 109,854 125,140 | 52,325 29764 | 4755 7237| 818 802 - - | 167,812 162,943
KERE Unallocated lioities - - - - - - - - | 141,722 123,003 | 141,722 123,023
BE0E Totl abies 309534 285,966
EREEY Capital expenditure incurred
Bt during the year 19,762 27,841 - 156 M0 304 - -1 st | 20888 33422
B 5 & Geographical segments

AEBZEBBERERS - ER
HEEZEBIRRTPEEL - B
& T A B H i i (& 15 A AN & B Bk K 3
BzExEBmE  —_ZTETMOFKRE
Société Guy Laroche %% + A& B 0] 15
I Guy Laroche 12 2 IS 7r B 23k
EHEBKA - BEEAAREEZHMAE
HMWEHK2ETEMS o

o> |11

ESRBES BELE  HHRAR
NEF 2 FEhAHERE - HRE
BERAARL M AIAE 2 A E B
CET

The Group’s business is managed on a worldwide basis, but
participates in three principal economic environments. Hong
Kong, Taiwan and other areas of the PRC are the major
markets for the Group’s garment business. Following the
acquisition of Société Guy Laroche in 2004, the Group has a
worldwide revenue stream from licensing the Guy Laroche
trademark. Hong Kong is the major market for all of the
Group’s other businesses.

In presenting information on the basis of geographical segments,
segment revenue is based on the geographical location of
customers. Segment assets and capital expenditure are based
on the geographical location of the assets.

BB =) HEEMHE =)
Other areas of
Hong Kong Taiwan the PRC Others
2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
TENREEZUMA  Revenue from external customers | 507,895 | 479,233 | 141,342 | 151242 | 307,318 | 290,520 66,263 | 111,193
HHEE Segment assets 457,084 | 427167 | 175265 | 191538 | 212,947 | 162976 | 211,492 | 204,935
EREEZ Capital expenditure incurred
BRTi during the year 6,231 17,608 5,080 6,324 9,083 7341 489 2,149




B35 3R AR P R

Notes to the Financial Statements
(B 5B A5 5) - 19 L% # 51| 7R~ Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

14 BEEE

(a Z*&H

RAE -
KZZZ0EMA-A
L

RE

e

AYEERE

RoFEAEZAZ-B

fix:

A

[HE- —NARE
- —IrE
- -AANE
-Z%%=F
- ZIE5E

R-FE/ FNA-A

E5AE

AE

i

NTEERE

RZEEtE-A=+-H

%!

A

ftE- —NABE
- —NNE
- —ANNE
-Z%%=
- ZZ%+E

Cost or valuation:

At 1 April 2005
Exchange adjustments
Additions

Disposals

Fair value adjustment

At 31 March 2006

Representing:

Cost

Valuation - 1994
-19%
-199%8
-2003
-2006

At 1 Apri 2006
Exchange adjustments
Additions

Disposals

Fair value adjustment

At 31 March 2007

Representing:

Cost

Valuation - 1994
- 1996
- 1998
-2003
- 2007

14 Fixed assets

(a) The Group

RELER

KRR BEgT BREER

2R BER | %6 " g1
g7 BE | HARRR it BE REnz it

Interest in

leasehold

Leasehold land held

Land and improvements, for own use

buildings motor vehicles, under

held for | Plantand | furniture and operating | Investment

ownuse | machinery equipment Sub-total lease properties Total
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $1000 $1000
117,064 40,770 102,858 260,682 7,146 45,800 313,628
1,008 523 (816) 715 52 - 767
- 5,064 28,179 33,243 179 - 33,422
- (1,809) (24,642) (26,447) - - (26,447)
- - - - - 17,500 17,500
118,062 44,552 106,579 268,193 7317 63,300 338,870
60,906 44,552 106,579 211,037 7317 - 218,414
16,956 - - 16,956 - - 16,956
5,020 - - 5,020 - - 5,020
2,180 - - 2,180 - - 2,180
33,000 - - 33,000 - - 33,000
- - - - - 63,300 63,300
118,062 44,552 106,579 268,193 7317 63,300 338,870
118,062 44,552 106,579 268,193 7317 63,300 338,870
1,449 97 2,083 4439 340 - 4719
26 1,316 19,541 20,883 - - 20,883
(1,400) (114) (8,732) (10,846) - - (10,846)
- - - - - 18,600 18,600
118,137 46,111 118,421 282,669 7,717 81,900 372,286
60,981 46,111 118,421 225,513 7,717 - 233,230
16,956 - - 16,956 - - 16,956
5,020 - - 5,020 - - 5,020
2,180 - - 2,180 - - 2,180
33,000 - - 33,000 - - 38,000
- - - - - 81,900 81,900
118,137 46,111 118,421 282,609 7,717 81,900 372,286
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14 B EEE (#) 14 Fixed assets (continued)
(a) FEH (&) (a) The Group (continued)
RESER
KEER HERT EBfFER
ZIHR BER | %8 1B ZEELH
BF W& | GARRE it Ei RENE ait
Interest in
leasehold
Leasehold land held
Land and improvements, for own use
buildings motor vehicles, under
held for | Plantand | furniture and operating | Investment
ownuse | machinery equipment Sub-total lease properties Total
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
ZiBERTE Accumulated
amortisation and
depreciation:
RZEZRFMA-A At 1 April 2005 28,999 29,399 70,672 129,070 1,929 - 130,999
EiEE Exchange adjustments 374 209 (633) (50) 17 - (33
RERARRNE Charge for the year 2,601 2972 16,731 22,304 310 - 20614
HERHE Written back on disposals - (1,214) (22,958) (24,172) - - [24172)
RIZTEAEZA=+—H  At31 March 2006 31,974 31,366 63,812 127,152 2,256 - 129,408
RZEENEMA-H At 1 April 2006 31,974 31,366 63,812 127,152 2,256 - 129,408
EiEE Exchange aojustments 587 450 846 1,883 107 - 1990
RERERRNE Charge for the year 2,608 2,684 21,774 27,066 138 - 27,204
LEREE Written back on disposals (364) (709) 8,351) (0,424) - - (9,424)
RIBELF=A=T-H  At31 March 2007 34,805 33,791 78,081 146,677 2,501 - 149,178
REFE: Net book value:
RIZELFZAZ+t—H  At31 March 2007 83,332 12,320 40,340 135,992 5216 81,900 223,108
RIZEAEZA=+—H  At31 March 2006 86,088 13,186 41,767 141,0H 5,121 63,300 209,462

2006/07 Annual Re%ﬂ?‘
]
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14 B EEE (&)

14 Fixed assets (continued)

(b) The Company

(b) ZE A

AR Cost:

N = At 1 April

®E Additions

HE Disposal
M=A=+—H At 31 March

ZEIE Accumulated depreciation:
M A—H At 1 April

REEFE Charge for the year

H &S R o] Written back on disposal
M=A=+—H At 31 March

BREEE : Net book value:
M=A=+—H At 31 March

HERFRE  "RE -
ENSET
Leasehold improvements,
motor vehicles, furniture
and equipment
2007 2006
$°000 $'000
5,834 5,920
811 95
(520) (181)
6,125 5,834
5,700 5,654
187 227
(520) (181)
5,367 5,700
758 134

(c) AEBRAEREMEER-ZF
tHFE=ZA=+—"HAEHBILAE
B{TH - A FBEHEEREE
BERERARZE2RESKRAE
BUYZRIMEMLECERSE
LA B2 ARMEEEETHRE -
ZRARAZBIRBBHNEMES
EXEE  UMEEVMERZIMLE
NERI AL -

(c)

All investment properties of the Group were revalued as
at 31 March 2007 on an open market value basis
calculated by reference to net rental income allowing for
reversionary income potential. The valuations were carried
out by an independent firm of surveyors, Savills Valuation
and Professional Services Limited, who have among their
staff Fellows of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors with
recent experience in the location and category of the
properties being valued.
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14 BEEEE (#)
(d NEEYEZEmDFERGED

T
B In Hong Kong
—RHMEE - long leases
—FEEE - medium-term leases
B LASN [ Outside Hong Kong
—RHMEE - long leases
—Fh S - medium-term leases
—REAEE - short-term leases
AVE Representing:
T REF Land and buildings
EYE Investment properties

REETAMEIEB A2 Interest in leasehold land held for
e i own use under operating lease

14 Fixed assets (continued)

(d) The analysis of net book value or valuation of properties

of the Group is as follows:

2007 2006
$°000 $000
70,018 67,067
64,807 51,988
- 11,865
24,100 23,589
11,523 -
170,448 154,509
83,332 86,088
81,900 63,300
165,232 149,388
5,216 5,121
170,448 154,509

(e) WEMEFTREAETHRELES
57,700,000 (ZEZE RN &F
44,400,0007C) 2% - ZEME
BB FHRITURBRERITEE
mEE_fTE+tF=A=+—H
It - BEFERZRITEESHEAHK
BETL(ZEZERNF T gx) o

(e)

Included in investment properties are certain properties
with an aggregate carrying value of $57,700,000 (2006:
$44,400,000) which are pledged to banks for obtaining
banking facilities of which $Nil was utilised as at 31 March
2007 (2006: $Nil).

2006/07 Annual Re%ﬂ?‘
]
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14 EEEE (F)
(N REEREMEZHBOT

14 Fixed assets (continued)

(f) Details of the Group’s investment properties are as

follows:
Term of
2 HAAZE | 8 | Location Existing use lease
EIBEAEE 20 % WAER | & | G/F and M/F, 20 Tai Yau Street, Offices and Medium
T R T San Po Kong, Kowloon factories
NEEFERE I A 185 TIH& | # | G/F, 18 Ng Fong Street, Factories and Medium
N Gl San Po Kong, Kowloon shops
BRLENRET 26 9% IW& | & | 3/F, 4/F, 7/F and 9/F, Hong Kong Factories and Long
BE (48) IXERE 1) (Chai Wan) Industrial Building, warehouses
34 7TEROE 26 Lee Chung Street, Chai Wan,
Hong Kong
ERBEERMGT 4% WAZE | B | UnitB,C,D,GandHon 7/F, and Offices, factories Medium
EIETHERET7E TH R Car Parking Space No. 8 on 1/F, and warehouses
B-C D GRHE" =)=} Wah Shun Industrial Building,
K112 8 SR EM 4 Cho Yuen Street,
Yau Tong, Kowloon
NERF A 28 % T | & | UnitNos. 2 and 4 on 6/F, and Factories Medium
FIRIMAE 612 Unit Nos. 1 and 2 on &/F,
2RA4ERBEIR2E Lee Sum Factory Building,
28 Ng Fong Street, Kowloon

(9 UBREHEHHZEZEEE :
AEBAKEHERLREDE -
ME-—RUFP/P—Z20F A
EREZEINHARESN EF
FREGREAENREE - SEL
eHEHTEEHEREE -

(g) Fixed assets leased out under operating leases:

The Group leases out investment properties under
operating leases. The leases typically run for an initial
period of one to five years, with an option to renew the
lease upon expiry at which time all terms are renegotiated.
None of the leases includes contingent rentals.

NEeHERAERERMTEN
NAREVMEERZDE KB
BREREWME -

All properties held under operating leases that would
otherwise meet the definition of investment properties
are classified as investment property.
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MEEEE (K])

(9 UEEHBHUZETAE :
(4)
AEBRETARGZEEBE
ERRERZ HEBENRER

14 Fixed assets (continued)
(g) Fixed assets leased out under operating leases:
(continued)

The Group'’s total future minimum lease receipts under
non-cancellable operating leases are receivable as

£ @I INEE follows:
2007 2006
$°000 $000
—FR Within 1 year 4,882 4,902
—FREBERFR After 1 year but within 5 years 5,061 8,102
9,943 13,004
15 B EE 15 Intangible assets
=k HE okl
Licence Trademark Total
$000 $°000 $°000
B Cost:
R-ZEZERFNA—A - At 1 April 2005,
“EERFE=ZA=1t—H- 31 March 2006,
“TERFNA-HRK 1 April 2006 and
“ER+FE=F=1+—H 31 March 2007 9,364 102,125 111,489
EHE £ Accumulated amortisation:
RZETRFMNA—H At 1 April 2005 585 - 585
AEF B Charge for the year 780 - 780
RZETRFE=A=1+—H  At31 March 2006 1,365 - 1,365
RZEZAFNA—H At 1 April 2006 1,365 - 1,365
REEHH Charge for the year 780 - 780
RZTZZE+E=F=+—H At 31 March 2007 2,145 - 2,145
IREFE Net book value:
R-ZZ+F=A=1+—H At31 March 2007 7,219 102,125 109,344
RZZTXE=A=+—H At31 March 2006 7,999 102,125 110,124

Guy Larocher 12 1R {EA] B[R BAfE A -
WRE ST BN T E10)BALR °

The Guy Laroche trademark is considered to have an indefinite
useful life and is accounted for in accordance with accounting
policy note 1(j).

2006/07 Annual Re%ﬂ—é‘
]
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156 BILEE (&)

EREt —F (RZBR A EREF
H) 2 HIMREESE - AEE 2 HIHE MG
AGEBRBERZ[DHEKA] -

HE IR R o] FBAS I AF R R AR R R

Guy Larochef® 12 iR 75 12 7] 98 32 5% Bl 2
Guy Laroche 7 °

Guy Laroche® 12 7 a] g [B] & 58 JY 1R 15
FHEBNEET - E@TERAL
EEEBZAZAFHBESREEN -
hFPrz2HeRERBTEREHE
oo BEEMAE - T E S ETIKIE
ZEEBRZ2EMNESEBAEES -
TeERREAELRAEJRKE S5 -

EFRHEENREACEERS

— R — Growth rate
—HBERE — Gross contribution rate
—RRIR = - Discount rate

15 Intangible assets (continued)

The licence is amortised over a period of 12 years being the
estimated useful life of the licence. The amortisation charge
for the year is included within “distribution costs” in the
consolidated profit and loss account.

Impairment test for trademark with indefinite useful
economic life

The Guy Laroche trademark services the Guy Laroche
operations which are separately identifiable.

The recoverable amount of the Guy Laroche trademark has
been determined based on value-in-use calculations. The
calculation uses cash flow projections based on a five-year
period approved by management. Cash flows beyond the
five-year period have been extrapolated using a nil per cent
growth rate. Management believes that any reasonably
possible change in the key assumptions on which the
recoverable amount is based would not cause the carrying
amount to exceed its recoverable amount.

Key assumptions used for value-in-use calculation:

2007 2006
0% 0%
86% 79%
8% 8%

BEEEREBEBERAREHMSER
CEMEBETERXRAERE - A
ZHBRER/REEZ METIHESK
o

6/07 F =R

Management determined the growth rate and gross
contribution rate based on the past performance and its
expectations for market development. The discount rate used
is the weighted average cost of capital of the Group.
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16

17

HEEEHR

RS Cost
b R

Exchange adjustment

16 Lease premium

rE
The Group
2007 2006
$°000 $'000
9,595 9,695
317 (668)
9,912 8,927

HERERE -—HMBRARA/RGBE
B—MmEzHERM N 2B -
WM BRARTBERZYE - A
BEHERLETT—EAEE - Bit
HERBERARRASHEBERBITAL
EEH  REELERPRERARR
EEEIEK -

RHMBLRAZRE

2007 2006

$°000 $000

JE LMY - KA Unlisted shares, at cost 11,003 11,003
JE LR B A RIFR Amounts due from subsidiaries 585,752 485,627
596,755 496,630

NGBS Amounts due to subsidiaries (20,566) (18,141)
576,189 478,489

W BEEE Less: impairment loss (72,850) (69,073)
503,339 409,416

Lease premium represents an amount paid by a subsidiary to
obtain the right to lease a property in France. In the event
that the subsidiary vacates the property, the subsidiary would
be entitled to sell the right to the lease to the next tenant.
Accordingly, the lease premium is considered to have an
indefinite useful economic life and is carried in the balance
sheet at cost less impairment losses.

17 Investments in subsidiaries

FEWH B R AR EER 2R RE
BEEXY ERANEER—FR
TEEE -

BEIEMBARZENFBHENE 17
BEZE$118H

Amounts due from and to subsidiaries are unsecured, interest
free and have no fixed terms of repayment but are not expected
to be settled within one year of the balance sheet date.

Details of the principal subsidiaries are set out on pages 117
to 118.
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18 BEE QAR

LB - KA
LEHRE - AR

FIEEERE

W R

Less: impairment loss

18 Interest in associates

Unlisted investment, at cost
Listed investment, at cost
Share of net assets

FEE A0
The Group The Company

2007 2006 2007 2006
$000 $000 $000 $000
- - 30,000 30,000
- - 12,595 12,595
96,864 85,317 - -
96,864 85,317 42,595 42,595
- - (25,280) (25,280)
96,864 85,317 17,315 17,315

(a R-ZEZELF=F=+—H X«
AEIR b ERE TR 2 #
% ™ 1E A140,840,0007T (ZZEE <
£ : 209,248,0007T) °

(b) BELAEHHE

S

100%

ARE
H S

—BERF
100%
REEZ

G S

2007

100 percent

Group’s effective
interest

2006

100 percent

Group’s effective
interest

(a)

The market value of the Company’s interest in the ordinary
shares of the above listed investment at 31 March 2007
was $140,840,000 (2006: $209,248,000).

(b) Summary information on associates:
-3 )
-3 afE R A (E1])
Profit/
Assets | Liabilities Equity Revenue (loss)
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000
1,099,571 (621,305) 478,266 | 2,086,474 104,679
227,319 (130,455) 96,864 429,568 21,252
1,050,828 (629,523) 421,305 | 1,977,652 87,007
217,348 (132,031) 85,317 407,476 21,540

BERRZEMFRBHERNEI9

Details of the principal associates are set out on pages 119 to

120.
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19 HttM B & E

19 Other financial assets

TEE N
The Group The Company
2007 2006 2007 2006
$000 $000 $000 $000
BFEZIHEEES Held-to-maturity debt securities
EEBEIN LT Listed outside Hong Kong - 7,528 - 7,528
REM Unlisted 1,140 1,704 - -
1,140 9,232 - 7,628
RN Other equity securities
KEMKREES Unlisted investment security 6,900 6,900 - -
o RE Less: impairment (6,900) (6,900) - -
BENRERRERT Loans to associates and accrued
8 (M 533(e)8) interest (note 33(e)) 41,753 41,471 41,753 41,471
R ORE Less: impairment - - (7,799) (6,800)
41,753 41,471 33,954 34,671
42,893 50,703 33,954 42,199

(a) BTHERARNZERSELM
NEBROEFBRARBRA Y
REFT10FREE R-_T——%F

(a) The loans to associates are unsecured, interest bearing
at 6% per annum and repayable after ten years from the
date of advance with $33,954,000 (2006: $33,725,000)

+— A 1L B 833,954,000
(ZZZEXF : 33,725,0007T) -
YTHR-_ZE——FXA-_+HHE
#7,799,000 (ZZEZE A~ F ¢
7,746,0007T) ° B & QB EMSF A
#7422,000C (Z 2T X F -
421,0000T) EREBE T+ F
—A=+t—HALFEEHRE (28
M 5F 55 33(d)3E)

BENRERREEBRBZ AR E
{8 £35,181,000C (ZZZT /X F
34,592,0007T) ° AR BEETIEK
KB REZHBERRAESHRT
BRITMBHMEYREHBE -

due to be repaid on 9 November 2011 and $7,799,000
(2006: $7,746,000) due to be repaid on 24 June 2012.
Interest payable by an associate of approximately
$422,000 (2006: $421,000) was waived for the year
ended 31 March 2007 (see note 33(d)).

The fair value of the loans to associates at the balance
sheet date is $35,181,000 (2006: $34,592,000). The
fair value is estimated as the present value of future cash
flows, discounted at current market interest rates for
similar financial instruments.
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19 HtWM B EE (@) 19 Other financial assets (continued)
(b) HMBEAFHFAREENRFBEIR (b) Other equity securities represents the Group’s investment
NRBZKE in a corporation in the PRC.
(c) (c)
TEE AT
The Group The Company
2007 2006 2007 2006
$°000 $'000 $000 $'000
REEBRH—FR Maturing within one year of the
Bl balance sheet date - 7,528 - 7,528
REE AR — 54 Maturing after more than one year
Elpe of the balance sheet date 42,893 43,175 33,954 34,671
42,893 50,703 33,954 42,199
(d) (d)
rEE AT
The Group The Company
2007 2006 2007 2006
$000 $000 $000 $000
EFHESHEME Market value of listed securities - 7,694 - 7,694
20 FEERAZEZRS 20 Trading securities
TEE AAT
The Group The Company
2007 2006 2007 2006
$000 $000 $000 $000
EEERZZES Trading securities
(#&mE) (at market value)
BRAEE S Equity securities
—REALT — listed in Hong Kong 3,977 5,125 3,977 5,125
REES Investment fund
—REBIMEE ET - listed outside Hong Kong - 2,425 - -
3,977 7,550 3,977 5,125
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21 78

(a) BEEREXAZFEEE

JRHF#
R

SLRK o

Raw materials
Work in progress
Finished goods

21 Inventories

(a)

Inventories in the balance sheet comprise:

TEE
The Group

2007 2006
$000 $'000
24,167 21,812
7,345 16,770
149,353 138,082
180,865 176,664

(b) BERABHZHFEHBEIHUT :

(b) The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised

as an expense is as follows:

rEE
The Group
2007 2006
$°000 $'000
BEFEZERAE Carrying amount of inventories sold 391,979 381,339
(MURBER) /7FEMIR  (Reversal of write-down)/write-down of inventories (1,152) 12,626
390,827 393,965
22 EWRBR AR K H 1t FE UL &K 22 Trade and other receivables
ES EING
The Group The Company
2007 2006 2007 2006
$°000 $'000 $'000 $'000
JEURERFN - JEIRZEIE «+ Debtors, bills receivable, deposits
e RIBAR and prepayments 137,101 132,415 907 1,025
JEWBE N RIFRIA Amounts due from related
(MI5E58 33(e)78) companies (note 33(e)) 878 1,997 355 52
S Club memberships 860 860 750 750
138,839 135,272 2,012 1,827

¥ 20 ¥ /5 860,0007T (ZEZ X F -
860,0007T) Z G P& f& 5N - P A B W
FR AR N E R WK TR A AT R — AR

[E] o

All of the trade and other receivables, apart from club
memberships of $860,000 (2006: $860,000), are expected

to be recovered within one year.

2006/07 Annual Re%ﬂ—z‘
]
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22 FE W BR X & H fib FE WX (@)

JRE L2 B K e Lt B MK R B2 3 R L BR K
LEWZER EHBRZERERBR)
HEBZgEAZEKED WO :

22 Trade and other receivables (continued)

Included in trade and other receivables are trade debtors and
bills receivable (net of impairment losses for bad and doubtful
debts) with the following ageing analysis as of the balance

sheet date:
REE
The Group
2007 2006
$°000 $'000
Ao Hf Current 72,085 66,777
wmH—Z= = A 1 to 3 months 5,547 6,304
mEBE=(EA More than 3 months but
BLR+=@A less than 12 months 2,070 1,360
79,702 74,441

AEEZ FEEBRRIAN M FEFE30@)HE -
& Ui B R e EL At FE MR R B8 T 51 A AR
BERBINEEBUIINZEBFEZ

TR

ETT United States Dollars

The Group’s credit policy is set out in note 30(a).

Included in trade and other receivables are the following
amounts denominated in a currency other than the functional
currency of the entity to which they relate:

g
The Group
2007 2006
usD uSD
’000 000
1,372 2,159

WHERBATEEY

EH RAF
The Group The Company
2007 2006 2007 2006
$°000 $000 $°000 $000
RIT R E M7 Deposits with banks and
B 2 other financial institutions 86,166 87,718 79,852 86,187
ReGakie Cash at bank and in hand 107,616 64,832 3,541 2,311
BEABRARZ Cash and cash equivalents in
ReMREEED the balance sheet 193,782 152,550 83,393 88,498
RITES (HT3E5$257)  Bank overdraft (note 25) (3,391) -
SABELRERM R Cashand cash equivalents in the
ReMReSEY consolidated cash flow statement 190,391 152,550

23 Cash and cash equivalents
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WHERESEEY (&)
BEABEAT 2B RBESSEY

23 Cash and cash equivalents (continued)

Included in cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet

BRETINHEEERE 2B A are the following amounts denominated in a currency other
ZEBTBEZSE than the functional currency of the entity to which they relate:
biS- 3] b NG|
The Group The Company
2007 2006 2007 2006
000 '000 '000 000
e United States Dollars | USD 5,697 Ush 3,465 usD 5,284 usD 2,984
HgE Pounds Sterling GBP 2 GBP 440 GBP 2 GBP 438
ARE Renminbi RMB 3,743 RMB 14 RMB - RMB -
24 ENERMRH M E R 24 Trade and other payables
b | P UNE|
The Group The Company
2007 2006 2007 2006
$000 $000 $000 $000
ANES Bills payable 7,345 1,471 7,345 1,471
FERBRR X e+ E P Creditors and accrued charges 163,185 160,396 4,238 4,165
AN NI O Amounts due to related companies
(PHEE2E 33(e)8) (note 33(g)) 8,885 6,733 - -
179,415 168,600 11,583 5,636

PR 7B FE A BR 0 R B A S SRIB I 1R

—EREE -

J& A5 R 7K Ko EL b 8 5 3R
LENRE  HBEE

W

—{E A R
370 RNR 51 2
—EARE=EAR
2|5
=EAREREAR
B

within one year.

All of the trade and other payables are expected to be settled

KB IE B BR SR Included in trade and other payables are trade creditors and
HEHZBRRD bills payable with the following ageing analysis as of the balance
sheet date:
AEE ARE
The Group The Company
2007 2006 2007 2006
$000 $000 $000 $000
Due within 1 month or on demand
32,992 30,112 7,345 1,471
Due after 1 month but within
3 months 31,323 25,029 - -
Due after 3 months but within
6 months 2 319 - -
64,317 55,460 7,345 1,471

2006/07 Annual Re%ﬂ?‘
]
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24 ENERARHE M EA R @

FEATBR R S E b FE AT R B 18 T 51 LA AR
MERZIEEBUIIZERFEZ

T
o Euros
BEE Pounds Sterling

= Japanese Yen

e United States Dollars | USD

of the entity to which they relate:

24 Trade and other payables (continued)

Included in trade and other payables are the following amounts
denominated in a currency other than the functional currency

A48 A2
The Group The Company

2007 2006 2007 2006

’000 '000 '000 '000

EUR 953 EUR 1,070 EUR 681 115
GBP 87 GBP 169 GBP - -
JPY 8,847 JPY 12,690 JPY - 5,789
1,040 usb - usD 37 -

255 BITERREX

RZZET+F=ZA=+—H RTE
RAEBEXZERBOT -

—FRSRERA

—FREMFA
MERBRAFR

25 Bank loans and overdrafts

Within 1 year or on demand

After 1 year but within 2 years
After 2 years but within 5 years

At 31 March 2007, the bank loans and overdrafts were
repayable as follows:

# %M

The Group
2007 2006
$°000 $'000
56,499 30,557
12,749 15,509
36,289 45,396
49,038 60,905
105,537 91,462

RZZET+F=ZA=+—H  RTE
RERBEBX 2 BRBERBAT :

AR IRIRITIA Y
(FIE5E 28 7A)

RITER

— B

— IR

Unsecured bank overdraft (note 23)

Bank loans
— secured
— unsecured

At 31 March 2007, the bank loans and overdrafts were secured
as follows:

rEE
The Group

2007 2006
$°000 $000
3,391 -
52,736 67,124
49,410 24,338
105,537 91,462
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25

26

BITERRKEEX (®)

RITERRBEXBETIAEBER
ZHBEEE NI ZERREZER -

ESW

United States Dollars

25

Bank loans and overdrafts (continued)

Included in bank loans and overdrafts are the following
amounts denominated in a currency other than the functional
currency of the entity to which they relate:

AEE
The Group
2007 2006
’000 ’000
UsSD 6,750 USD 8,650

R-EBEE+F=Z/=+—8  —HH
B AR A%52,736,000t (ZFZF X
F 1 67,124,000 ) Z SR 1T E F A H K
BAAZEKRBEFTIUAERR -_ZEZLF
A=+ BEHEEZBLEFES R
B 825,944,000 (ZEZERXF
30,963,0007T) % 60,698,0007T (= E =&
7N 1 60,146,0007T) 2 B 5 #E B W =
ERIEIR - ZERTERZAE AR
HEEHFEN1.35% °

MY HHBEELHBEME A%
BERARTEEHAEIBEHELAEHE
ETEERBREERZRZFE - WAKHE
ERBBARE AR ZERBZRE
KEMN AEEeFHEEH BT
MBHEZIBER - BEASEEER
EoRB#E—TFE BRWESE
0O)E - RZTEZ+F=-A=+—H"
AEEVTEERERNEEABA R
FH(ZEERF  8|) -

BERKEF

AREEDNZBERECRIERES S
B2 RE - BIRBEFEERGID
ERzEERIARHEAESHE (T8
BEtEll) - BB -BEAE
HFRARFE - ABUXFTAREE
BoREBESFE  BXREES
BinEEBRWA 25%RZat8l1FH
3K B AABWAZ LR &20,000

AW

TE o M BIE 2 BRI ENN B -

26

As at 31 March 2007, the bank loan of a subsidiary amounting
to $52,736,000 (2006: $67,124,000) was secured over
trade receivables of its subsidiary and royalty
income amounting to $25,944,000 at 31 March 2007 (2006:
$30,963,000) and $60,698,000 (2006: $60,146,000) for the
year then ended, respectively. The bank loan bears interest
at LIBOR plus 1.35%.

All of the Group’s banking facilities are subject to the fulfillment
of covenants relating to certain of the Group’s balance sheet
ratios, as are commonly found in lending arrangements with
financial institutions. If the Group were to breach the covenants
the drawn down facilities would become payable on demand.
The Group regularly monitors its compliance with these
covenants. Further details of the Group’s management of
liquidity risk are set out in note 30(b). As at 31 March 2007
none of the covenants relating to drawn down facilities had
been breached (2006: $Nil).

Employee retirement benefits

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(the “MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees employed
under the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance. The MPF scheme is a defined contribution
retirement scheme administered by independent trustees.
Under the MPF scheme, the employer and its employees are
each required to make contributions to the scheme at 5% of
the employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly
relevant income of $20,000. Contributions to the scheme
vest immediately.

2006/07 Annual Repett—96
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26

27

BEERAKTBR (@)

o B ROA B IR A RE M A L 2 MY B A
RA2MEERE R R AT ERE
BE B AR REHIFENRTE - %
EHFININFEBRRAK

—RHEEEXNZZHEBRRBEE
(BEEEZE)2H—BRE @A EK
ET &l o MRZETEIEL B FIEE I+
TERF©Z2%H o Zrr S| ¥ A%
B TERERZTE  BWLEERSE
EEHMASEBZ(EB G ER)
F19% 1 5 15 FI# 5& o

REGEXRS

ARBR-_EBEZENFALA=-F+ZHIRK
MBI ERTE - Bt - AARIEFE
REAMTHBATCHBZAEEZES (B
BAEBEAIMNAGZES) NTEREE
WNEEREARB ARG 2RG - ZF
BRENT L BAHZBIOKEE - 17
BTERNTYFIIE - BHOBBREFER
BEANEERBARR—REBER

<

<)

(a) UTREEFERTHEKREZRK
RRIEH  EBRESEER

26

27

Employee retirement benefits (continued)

Subsidiaries incorporated in the PRC and France participate
in the defined contribution retirement schemes operated by
the local authorities for employees in the PRC and France,
respectively. Contributions to these schemes are charged to
the profit and loss account when incurred.

A subsidiary established in Taiwan participates in a defined
benefit retirement plan established in accordance with the local
Labour Standards Law. Contributions to the plan are based
upon 2% of wages and salaries paid. The scheme is not
material to the Group and, therefore, the disclosures required
by HKAS 19 Employee benefits issued by the HKICPA have
not been presented.

Equity settled share-based transactions

The Company has a share option scheme which was adopted
on 23 September 2004 whereby the Directors of the Company
are authorised, at their discretion, to invite employees of the
Group, including directors of any company in the Group, to
take up options at nil consideration to subscribe for shares in
the Company. The options vest after 30 days from the date
of grant and are then exercisable within a period of ten years.
Each option gives the holder the right to subscribe for one
ordinary share in the Company.

(a) The terms and conditions of the grants that existed
during the years are as follows, whereby all options

EXTRGEZE : are settled by physical delivery of shares:
B
BREHE BB R ERHER
Number of Vesting Contractual
instruments conditions | life of options
RTES 2 BRE - Options granted to Directors:
-RZETRFE-AT++tH - on 17 January 2005 7,850,000 REAHE308 +&
30 days from 10 years
the date of grant
RTEE ZBRE Options granted to employees:
-RZZTRF-A++H - on 17 January 2005 4,274,000 Rt A#E30 B T4
30 days from 10 years
the date of grant
EiEes Total share options 12,124,000

Fﬁ%ﬂw wi
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2T REEER S (@#) 27 Equity settled share-based transactions

(continued)

(b) BREZBERMEFGITEEN

(b) The number and weighted average exercise prices of

T options are as follows:
2007 2006
T MEF
TEEE | BREHE TEE | BREHE
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise | Number of exercise Number of
price options price options
$ ‘000 $ ‘000
BRI BB Outstanding at the beginning
of the period 121 12,027 12.1 12,124
MR BRE Exercised during the period - - 12.1 (25)
BREE AN BRE Lapsed during the period - (44) - (72)
BIRRITIE 2 AR Outstanding at the end
of the period 121 11,983 121 12,027
BIRAITIE 2 i Exercisable at the end
of the period 121 11,983 12.1 12,027

AEFEEEITEEBRENITERZ
MmEFHRELEZT T (ZTT X
£ 1 14.0570) ©

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise
for options exercised during the year was $Nil (2006:
$14.05).

The options outstanding at 31 March 2007 had an
exercise price of $12.1 (2006: $12.1) and a weighted
average remaining contractual life of 8 years (2006:

R_EELF=A=+—AK7]
EMBREYTEEAIZIT(—F
FAF 12.17) © MEFHFS

ERFRABSF (ZEERF - 9 years).
9fF) o
WEEEBERZIAEBM 28 Income tax in the balance sheet
(a) BEEEEXRITZEBHEHS - (a) Current taxation in the balance sheets represents:
biN | N
The Group The Company
2007 2006 2007 2006
$000 $000 $000 $000
REFEBFEFEE  Provision for Hong Kong Profits
Tax for the year 12,608 17,259 652 407
ENEHFEH Provisional Profits Tax paid (11,752) (15,248) (560) -
856 2,011 92 407
INEFEFRISRIERE,  Balance of Profits Tax provision/

(ATiglEl) #es (recoverable) relating to prior years 181 (587) 180 (652)
TN TR Provision for overseas tax 9,556 12,013 - -
e/ (ATi[E) Current tax payable/

RERTRIR (recoverable) 10,593 13,437 272 (245)
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2 EEEBEBRZAEBH | 28 Income tax in the balance sheet
(continued)
(b) ERREEFHBELEEMNEHE : (b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised:
i =% ()  The Group
ERGEEERBRER The components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities
EERIE (BE) AEE recognised in the consolidated balance sheet and
RRAFEEHNT the movements during the year are as follows:
BHERTE RIEEBEZ
ZIESHE EfE —REE A#&RIR By
Depreciation
allowances
in excess of | Revaluation Future
the related of General benefit of
depreciation properties provisions tax losses Total
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000
RIERITERE - Deferred tax arising
from:

“TERFMA—H At 1 April 2005 (4,062) 10,520 (15,401) (28,681) (37,624)
EREH% Exchange adjustments 12 - 191 1,578 1,781
TBHES/ Charged/(credited)

(ZA) to the profit and
loss account 228 3,062 (7,089) 2,042 (1,737)
RZZTEAF=A=+—8 At31 March 2006 (3,829) 13,582 (22,279) (25,061) (37,580

—TEXFMA—H At 1 April 2006 (3,822) 13,582 (22,279 (25,061) (37,580)
EREH% Exchange adjustments 19 - (52) 2,514) (2,579)
TBREY/ Charged/(credited)

(FA) to the profit and
loss account 1,635 875 5,121 (10,587) (3,056)
RZZZ+F=A=+—H At31 March 2007 (2,300) 14,457 (17,210) (38,162) (43,215)
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2 BEEEBRZAEBH (&) 28

b) ERFELEHELEENEME :

(4&)
(i) A7

ERNEERERER ZEL

WE(EE) &
FEZHOT

EERTERE -
MR-EZHFE—H
EBERTA
R-FERE=A=T-A
RZEZFENA—H
EBERIIL

R-BBLE=A=1-A

& B 10 kA

Deferred tax arising from:

At 1 April 2005

Credited to the profit and
loss account

At 31 March 2006

At 1 April 2006
Charged to the profit and
loss account

At 31 March 2007

Income tax in the balance sheet

(continued)

(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised:
(continued)

(i) The Company

The components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities
recognised in the balance sheet and the movements
during the year are as follows:

EEEABRARERZ
EXHBEEFE

EEERBRRAERL
EXHBREFE

Net deferred tax assets
recognised in the
balance sheet

Net deferred tax liabilities
recognised in the
balance sheet

BHERTE
ZHERBE —RER we
Depreciation
allowances
in excess of
the related General
depreciation provisions Total
$°000 $°000 $°000
(18) (310) (328)
S) - ©)
(26) (310) (336)
(26) (310) (336)
91 310 401
65 - 65
i | AT
The Group The Company
2007 2006 2007 2006
$000 $000 $000 $000
(57,204) (50,047) - (336)
13,989 12,467 65 -
(43,215) (37,580) 65 (336)

2006/07 AmnuaIReQQQﬁf)(ﬂ
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WBEERBRZAEHR (&) 28 Income tax in the balance sheet
(continued)

(c) *EBRZEEZHEEME (c) Deferred tax liabilities not recognised
RZZEZLF=A=+—H " W At 31 March 2007 temporary differences relating to
BRARKZE GH 2 ERMERE the undistributed profits of subsidiaries amounted to
%55,275,000L (ZEZE X F ¢ $55,275,000 (2006: $56,914,000). Deferred tax liabilities
56,914,0007T) ° & 728 2 &) 2 of $8,292,000 (2006: $9,108,000) have not been
ZEMBARI 2R EEEK + MiZ recognised in respect of the tax that would be payable
LB AR IMERTIEA R iR on the distribution of these retained profits as the
T3 A] B IR 2R A B B R Company controls the dividend policy of these
RA LA DK% FIR B % T T E subsidiaries and it has been determined that it is probable
EHEMPRZELEHRBERE that profits will not be distributed in the foreseeable future.
8,292,000 (Z T T X% :
9,108,0007T) °

29 RAR f# & 29 Capital and reserves
(a) *&H (a) The Group
RAgE BEMR HERR
iFd BE | RbEE Bl | RAHE | BRERE | MEHE | REEA |  4E|  BR| EuSE
Associate’s
Capital share
Share Share | redemption | Capital option | Exchange | Retained Minority Total
Note capital | premium reserve | resevve | reserve | reserve | profits Total | interests | equity
$000 $000 $000 §000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000

RZEZRFMA—-H At 1 April 2005 77,368 | 133,045 4181 23278 - | 14,321 | 338,464 | 590,657 | 16,416 | 607,073

RTEBREMEARN  Shares issued upon exercise

of share options 27 13 338 - (48) - - - 303 - 303

BREEH Lapse of share options 27 - - -1 (13 - - 138 - - -

BEFERHERS Dividend approved in respect

of the previous year 11(0) - - - - - - | (46,429)| (46,429) - | (46,429

RiEE Purchase of own shares

-EfkEE - par value paid (39) - - - - - - (39 - (39

-BHEE ~ premium paid - - - - - - ol ) )]

-fEREEE - transfer between reserves - - 39 - - - (39) - - -

TERINHBAT Exchange differences on

BIBRRAEEL translation of the financial
EXEE statements of foreign
subsidiaries - - - - - (4,869 - (4,869 (569)|  (5,438)
FE(EBE NG ZMERE  Share of exchange reserve of
associates - - - - - 469 - 469 - 469
FEIEBENFZERE  Share of share option
il reserve of associates - - - - 703 - - 703 - 08
RERRF Profit for the year - - - - - - 161,913 [ 161,913 | 3,536 | 165,449
TEEDERRE Dividends declared in respect
of the current year 118) - - - - - - | (20,109)| (20,109) -| (20,109)
ERVHRREZZRE  Dividends paid to minority
interests - - - - - - - - (1,407)) (1,407)
HERBARERE Write back of minority
SRR R interests on disposal of
interests in subsidiaries - - - - - - - - 845 845
RZZEAEZA=1-H At31 March 2006 77,342 | 133,383 4220 23,092 703 9,921 | 433,168 | 681,829 | 18,821 | 700,650

Waﬂﬁm wi
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29 RAK ## () 29 Capital and reserves (continued)
(a) FEH (&) (a) The Group (continued)
RARE BeQEr UBR
it BA | RHEE fife | RARE | BREGRE | MERE | REER L Bi | RRAT
Associate’s
Capital share
Share Share | redemption | Capital option | Exchange | Retained Minority | Total
Note capital | premium reserve | reserve | reserve | reserve | profits Total | interests |  equity
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 | 000
RZZE/ ERA-A At 1 April 2006 77,342 | 133,383 4220 23,092 703 0921 | 433,168 | 681,829 | 18,821 | 700,650
BREXY Lapse of share options 2 - - - (85) - - 85 - - -
BEFREHERS Dividend approved in respect
of the previous year 11(o) - - - - - - | (49,499 | (49,499 - | (49,499
RiAmE Purchase of own shares
-BHREE - par value paid (428) - - - - - -1 (g - )
-BHEE - premium paid - - - - - - 02| (500 -1 602
-EREE - transfer between reserves - - 42 - - -1 g - - -
RERIHBAA Exchange differences on
UBRRMELZ tranglation of the financiel
EHEE statements of foreign
subsidiaries - - - - - 2,321 - 2,301 (185)] 2,136
JEIEBARE ZIMERE  Share of exchange reserve of
associates - - - - - 365 - 365 - 355
RERRT Profi for the year - - - - - - | tgtet | figtar | 1923 | 120,044
TEERERRE Dividends declared in respect
of the current year 11(a) - - - - - - (19,998 (19,998) - (19,99
ERDHREESZRE  Dhidends paid to minorty interests - - - - - - - O
RZZZLF=A=+—H A 31 March 2007 76,916 | 133,383 4646 [ 23,007 703 | 12597 | 476429 | 727,681 | 19,573 | 747,254

2006/07 Annual Re%ﬂ
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29 BRAKR # % (#®) 29 Capital and reserves (continued)
(b) ZEnAE (b) The Company
k&
H & | ROGE | EERE | BARE | REER g
Capital
Share Share | redemption Capital | Retained
Note capital | premium reserve reserve profits Total
$000 §000 $000 §000 $000 §000
RZEEREMA-A At 1 April 2006 77,368 133,045 4,181 23,218 213,251 451123
RfreEREnEaka Shares issued upon exercise of
share options 2 13 338 - (48) - 303
BiRERH Lapse of share options 7 - - - (138) 138 -
R Purchase of own shares
-ERREE - par value paid (39) - - - - (39)
-2HEE - premium paid - - - - (770) (770)
-HERER ~ transfer between reserves - - 39 - (39) -
BEFECHERS Dividends approved in respect
of the previous year () - - - - (46,429) (46,429)
KRR Profit for the year 10 - - - - | 175380 | 175380
TEREERRE Dividends declared in respect
of the current year 11(a) - - - - (20,109) (20,109)
RZEE E=A=1-H At 31 March 2006 77,342 133,383 4220 28,092 321,422 569,459
RZEE/ EMA-H At 1 April 2006 77,342 133,383 4220 28,092 321,422 569,459
BRELN Lapse of share options il - - - 89) 85 -
breniell Purchase of own shares
-BREEE - par value paid (426) - - - - (426)
-BHEE ~ premium paid - - - - (5,022) (5,022)
- HhiERER - transfer between reserves - - 426 - (426) -
BEFECHERS Dividends approved in respect
of the previous year () - - - - (49,499) (49,499)
KERRA Profit for the year 10 - - - - | 148314 | 148314
TEEESRRE Dividends declared in respect
of the current year 1) - - - - (19,999) (19,99)
RZEE+FZA=1-H At 31 March 2007 76,916 133,383 4,646 23,007 394,876 632,828

Wﬂ%@? o



B R 3R AR P R

Notes to th

e Financial Statements

(B 5B HT 1558 » 5 LA 8 # 51 7R~ Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

20 WA R f# B |\
(c) BRE

U

EERDETRA

(c) Share capital

29 Capital and reserves (continued)

(i) Authorised and issued share capital

EERA

FIREE 0.50 LB

EBR  BERTR

BERA
RIUA—H
P17 [2] B (i)

R T{ g A

i EE1 TR (i)

R=A=+—H

Authorised:

Ordinary shares of $0.50 each

Ordinary shares, issued and
fully paid:

At 1 April

Purchase of own shares (i)

Shares issued upon exercise
of share options (jii)

At 31 March

2007 2006

BRE Bz &

No. of No. of

shares shares
(‘000) $°000 (‘000) $°000
200,000 100,000 200,000 100,000
154,685 77,342 154,739 77,368
(853) (426) (79) (39
- - 25 13
153,832 76,916 154,685 77,342

£/8

—EEXF+—AH

BB E AR REKITE
BERkZKRE - BEFHE K
BE-—FEARFEHRLZ
RERE - -FALTAKRHER
RAFNBEEZTARE#

N

B iy = B8

HE-FFLF=A=+-
ALLFE  ARAEEBH
ARBHERAABELE
B HEMT

Month/year

November 2006

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive
dividends as declared from time to time and are
entitled to one vote per share at meetings of the
Company. All ordinary shares rank equally with
regard to the Company’s residual assets.

(i)  Purchase of own shares

During the year ended 31 March 2007, the
Company repurchased its own ordinary shares on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited as

follows:
EERG | SRXGZ BRI Rz
4 BaE% BEE® BEE
Number of Highest Lowest | Aggregate
shares | price paid | price paid price
repurchased per share per share paid
$ $ $°000
853,000 6.50 6.19 5,448

2006/07 Annual R

=i
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c) Rz (#)

(i

(i)

(V)

TR

—EERFE-_/A+HE
—ET-RF-A+HH

P fn Bl B (48)

CERGE FEHE A7
ZEBTRANEZEER
oz BREERELR - BT
BB R AENFE4HIE - — 1B
HERLKEFHEBROEE
426,0007T 2 ® BB E MR E &
FERERABELMGEE - B
BRI 2 EE
5,022,0007T B B R 88 & F 40
5/% °

RIEBRETE BT 2RO

FR - ITEERERE RN
RAEBRAZTHR(ZZEEX
F : 25,0000k FiEAx) - KB
BET(ZFTXNEF
303,0007t) * AP T (=ZF
TN 0 13,0000T) B EF AR
K -BTZ2ET(ZEER
£ : 290,0007T) BllFT AR 935
Bl -ZTL(ZZTEZEARF
48,0007T) B 1R #5 M 7F 28 1(q)(i)
TEH P75 2 BUSR /AR A R 1 8
ABHmER -

REZBRBH K72
fB R 2 R K

29 Capital and reserves (continued)

(c) Share capital (continued)

(i

(i)

(iv)

Exercise period

16 February 2005 to
15 February 2015

Purchase of own shares (continued)

The repurchased shares were cancelled and
accordingly the issued share capital of the Company
was reduced by the nominal value of these shares.
Pursuant to section 49H of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, an amount equivalent to the
par value of the shares cancelled of $426,000 was
transferred from retained profits to the capital
redemption reserve. The premium paid on the
repurchase of the shares of $5,022,000 was
charged to retained profits.

Shares issued under share option scheme

During the year, options were exercised to subscribe
for Nil ordinary shares (2006: 25,000 ordinary
shares) in the Company at a consideration of $Nil
(2006: $303,000), of which $Nil (2006: $13,000) was
credited to share capital and the balance of $Nil
(2006: $290,000) was credited to the share premium
account. $Nil (2006: $48,000) has been transferred
from the capital reserve to the share premium
account in accordance with the policy set out in
note 1(q)(ii).

Terms of unexpired and unexercised share options
at balance sheet date

2007 2006

TEEE A A
Exercise price Number Number
$12.1 | 11,983,000 | 12,027,000

Wﬂ%@? wi

BHEREZEEALARE
RBEBARA—RERRK - %
EHERE2FLZHFBIRY
HHmARM EE27E -

Each option entitles the holder to subscribe for one
ordinary share in the Company. Further details of
these options are set out in note 27 to the financial
statements.
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(d)

(e)

REZMERAS
0  MmEE &R AER ##&

1% 17 ' (8 BR K B% 2N BB [0 7% &
Ao RIREEBRQRIERE
48B1§ K 5 A9HIF FE A -

(i) BRAFEE

BARFEERREMES10)
(i) P B R N SRR 2 &
AABRERZERIMGEE
BYARQREEBERKRITRE
ZEBRESRB ZAAEE -

(i) HNEEFE B

SIMNEE 8 1 B FE AT BB O X
MBREMEEZMBER
EZH o RRHBEREMEEIV
Bz BIRERE -

vy BERAZzBRERE

EASEERIEHZRARRE
TREREEL ZBRER
o

i #7515
R-_EZ+FE=ZA=+—H K
NAAHES IR TEZRE 2 FE
48 %E 5394,876,0007T (ZZEZE X
41 321,422,0007T) - R&EHE
% EFSERARETRARS LA
R R (ZZEERF « TER
BR32Ml) » #49,226,0007T (=&
T N4 1 49,499,0007T) © A E
REEHHNAERBEE -

29 Capital and reserves (continued)

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves

(e)

M

(i)

(i)

(iv)

Share premium and capital redemption reserve

The application of the share premium account and
the capital redemption reserve is governed by
Sections 48B and 49H respectively of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

Capital reserve

The capital reserve comprises the fair value of the
actual or estimated number of unexercised share
options granted to employees of the Company
recognised in accordance with the accounting policy
adopted for share based payments in note 1(q)(ii).

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation of
the financial statements of foreign operations.
The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policy set out in note 1(u).

Associate’s share option reserve

Represents the Group’s share of an associate’s
share option reserve, which arose on the granting
of share options.

Distributability of reserves

At 31 March 2007, the aggregate amount of reserves
available for distribution to equity shareholders of the
company was $394,876,000 (2006: $321,422,000).
After the balance sheet date the directors proposed a
final dividend of 32 cents per ordinary shares (2006:
32 cents per ordinary share), amounting to $49,226,000
(2006: $49,499,000). This dividend has not been
recognised as a liability at the balance sheet date.

2006/07 Annual RG%W
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30 B ITA 30 Financial instruments

AEESELRXBBIEFTHREES
RBEE  MERAMHINERRR - REE
BB NI BEEBRMER M
4 55 L£ L B 0 DA BR ) o

(a FERER
AEBZEERBREZRAEK
R EEMER  EHFRER
FERIBITREMIBEEZTFR -
EEECDEREERSK  LET
HERMAXEERBZREE -

MEWBEFRREMEBERIME -
AEEBHERKBA-—TELHEEE
CHBREFEMBNERHSH#
TEETME - ZERWRTIRAA
X B #1302 90H W B 7 -

RIBTTHERME - HRBEFAD
ERE T EEFRREZRITR -
AEEMEFRZEHA S =E
AR

AEBRAZZEERRERE
BEABRTEBEVBEEZK
E{E - BRASKEEL 2 B 5542
R (A SESEB2IEFat) 5h - A&
By EELASIRAEERER
AAEEERR 2 EMER - K
SERGEEARZEMBERRA
AEZEERR LRV EFS2
HEE -

(b) TBEZLRME
AEEAERNEEEEAEBTR
EREGEE  BREBESAKRE
RHMREREEEFRARNEY
ZESH/K(EEERBRE THE
RETCRBKTIRAEGSAR
AEFGHE) - AREZBRA
THERAMEAERZRBES
BREREETHRRFEZB/N -
NEREGFERNR S HERA
FRERZ ETESFRKREEE
MBHBZARETRE AR
NEERHZABESHTR -

006/07 “F ¥R

=

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks
arises in the normal course of the Group’s business. These
risks are limited by the Group’s financial management policies
and practices described below.

(a) Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade
and other receivables, debt investments and deposits
with banks and other financial institutions. Management
has a credit policy in place and exposures to these credit
risks are monitored on an ongoing basis.

In respect of trade and other receivables, credit
evaluations are performed on all customers requiring
credit over a certain amount and for all new customers.
These receivables are due between 30 days to 90 days
from the date of billing.

In respect of deposits with banks, the Group only places
deposits which are less than three months to maturity
when placed with banks which meet certain credit rating
criteria.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by
the carrying amount of each financial asset in the balance
sheet. Except for the financial guarantees given by the
Group as set out in note 32, the Group does not provide
any other guarantees which would expose the Group or
the Company to credit risk. The maximum exposure to
credit risk in respect of these financial guarantees at the
balance sheet date is disclosed in note 32.

(b) Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are
responsible for their own cash management, including
the short term investment of cash surpluses and the
raising of loans to cover expected cash demands, subject
to approval by the Company’s board when the borrowings
exceed certain predetermined levels of authority.
The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current and
expected liquidity requirements and its compliance with
lending covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient
reserves of cash and readily realisable marketable
securities and adequate committed lines of funding from
major financial institutions to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term.
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(c) FIEERE

HREBBAZHBEEER
BREME » TRIITE
BRFEETHHELIHA

BIZEBRFE -

rEE
RUBHERRE Repricing dates for
ZEE/ (BR) assetsiabilities)
ZEERH which reprice
before maturity
BeRBLSET  Cashandcash
equivalents
RTERRER Bank loans and
overdrafts
FRUBHETRZ  Maturity dates for
ZEE/ (B)  assets/(labilties
ZHHA which do not reprice
hefore maturity
BENFZERR  Loantoassociates and
IS accrued nterest
BETISERES  Held-to-maturty debt
securities
BTERRER Bank loans and
overdrafts

8]

30 Fi
(c)

nancial instruments (continued)

Interest rate risk

In respect of income-earning financial assets and interest-
bearing financial liabilities, the following table indicates

R their effective interest rates at the balance sheet date
and the periods in which they reprice or the maturity
dates, if earlier.

The Group
ER
FE% Fk —FHUT | —EmF —ZEf EFHUE
Effective
interest One year 1-2 2-5 More than
rate % Total or less years years 5 years
2007 2006 | 2007 2006 | 2007 2006 | 2007 2006 | 2007 2006 2007 2006
$000 $000 | $000 $'000 | $'000 $000 | $000 $000 | $000 $000
250%  0.31% | 193,782 152,550 | 193,782 152,560 - - - - - -
6.13% 598% | (96,567) (86,454) | (54,769) (26,549) | (10,938) (15,509)| (30,860) (45,396 - -
97,215 66,096 | 139,013 127,001 | (10,938) (15,509 | (30,860) (45,39) - -
6.00% 6.00% | 41,753 41471 - - - - - - | 4753 41471
380% 394% | 1,140 9232 | 1,140 9282 - - - - - -
460% 477% | (8970) (5,008 | (1,780) (5,008 (1,811) - (5429 - - -
33923 45,69 (590) 4224 | (1,811) - (5429 - | M783 4147

2006/07 Annual Re%ﬂOﬁ
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30 Financial instruments (continued)

Interest rate risk (continued)

rE The Company
BB
Fl= % ek —EHUT —ZME EENE
Effective More
interest One year 1-2 than
rate % Total or less years 5 years
2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
$000 $000| $000 $000| $000 $000| $000 $000
REBHEERE Repricing dates for
ZEE/ (BR) assets/(liabilties)
ZEERY which reprice
before maturity
B RALEED Cash and cash
equivalents 435% 4.02% | 83,393 88498 | 83,393 88498 - - - -
FRHBMAEERE  Maturity dates for
ZEE/ (BR) assets/(liabilities)
ZHHA which do not reprice
before maturity
BEARAZERR Loans to associates and
JEHIE accrued interest 6.00% 6.00% | 41,753 41471 - - - -| 41,753 41471
BEREEERES  Held-to-maturty debt TER
securities N/A 3.97% - 7528 - 7528 - - - -
4,753 48,999 - 7,528 - -| 4,753 41471
(d) s E R (d) Foreign currency risk

AEBSRZINERREERE
BEREBRERNEEBAINZ
SNEFTEZEERER S © 5l BULA
RescE® T2 /BT X
(TE€x))  BERHES-

ENEEEIITEE  BEER
HETHEBEEXSI FAEBEEKX
KE o RR/ETEERBREN -
A ERERAS - AEEEK
HEWEXZESH 2 AR -

AEBZEEHUERERZE
B2 EHE KMNER
BEREBEEZAEERA - AIAE
W ETEE - Btk - EREY
THEMASEZEESH & EM
BERZINERR -

WT%W wi

The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk primarily
through sales and purchases that are denominated in a
currency other than the functional currency of the
operations to which they relate. The currencies giving
rise to this risk are primarily Euros, United States dollars
(“USD”), Japanese Yen and Pounds Sterling.

Given that the USD is pegged to HKD, management does
not expect any significant movements in the USD/HKD
exchange rate and considers the exposure to foreign
currency risk in relation to the USD to be low. However,
management acknowledges that it is exposed to
fluctuations in the exchange rate for the other currencies.

All the Group’s borrowings are denominated in the
functional currency of the entity taking out the loan or, in
the case of Group entities whose functional currency is
HKD, in either HKD or USD. Given this, management
does not expect that there will be any significant currency
risk associated with the Group’s borrowings.
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(@ R-ZEELtFE=ZF=+—HK&E
TR KEHBERRANIERERE

31 Commitments

(a) Capital commitments outstanding at 31 March 2007
not provided for in the financial statement were as

ZEXEEMT :

SEIES)

Contracted for

follows:
rEE b NG|
The Group The Company
2007 2006 2007 2006
$000 $000 $000 $000
- 16,771 - -

b)) RZEELtF=F=+—H K
BRrUMBRZEEHEZAEE
TZRIEHEFHEEZOT -

(b) At 31 March 2007, the total future minimum lease

payments under non-cancellable operating leases are

payable as follows:

2007 2006
L/ES Hit LS EHAth
Properties Other Properties Other
$°000 $°000 $'000 $000
AEEH The Group
—FNR Within 1 year 98,915 138 108,113 141
—FERERFER After 1 year but within
5 years 73,827 - 110,400 2,854
AFE After 5 years 29,296 - 29,468 -
202,038 138 247,981 2,995
2007 2006
LYES L7/ES
Properties Properties
$°000 $'000
FIN/NE| The Company
—FA Within 1 year 3,888 3,888

2006/07 Annual Re%ﬂ/ ( 1
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31

32

AT (|

b) R=—ZFEEtHE=F=+—H R
BrURCEEHEFHEE
TZRIEEENFELEZNT :
(4&)

RESRBREMOBEZERL
WhkEBFRRELEROTEZL
WeBEBABERHARMEE 14
g o

BRREHEN  ARERBARK
REMOBEZDERRRER
wzEBEAN - BEHE-—ROF
RB—E=E=F YHEAREEER
AHMARES  ERMA GRS
AEHETE -

IR EFTTABBZELSE
AxEgRSABe  HEEH
BOFEEzEABEZ £ &
EREMESARBBRAZIZHE
B1%(ZEEZERNEFE : 12%ZE30%)
I ER o

XARAEE

RNZZEELFE=ZF=+—H  AQA
EHBRARMEGBRITEEMIRITIE
HE R A 587,524,000 (ZEZ X
& 1 84,216,0007T) ° AR A ATEE W
ZERWEEE - WIEEBZ2RXHT
BERIB(E B ER]) B3 IEF R
GREASMFTERET G AFEE
AEZEERTEEAVEABRT
STEENFEE-

REER EFgIRAREMNE %
HZRERABAARBAIREIELRE -
REER KRR ER ZERZS
REBBEAEBENBRATMBAZRIT
= B 547,991,000 (Z TN F ¢
34,512,0007T) °

[ %W R
T47

31 Commitments (continued)

(b) At 31 March 2007, the total future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases are
payable as follows: (continued)

Significant leasing arrangements in respect of land and
buildings classified as being held under finance lease
and land held under operating leases are described in
note 14.

Apart from these leases, the Group is the lessee in respect
of a number of properties and office equipment under
operating leases. The leases typically run for an initial
period of one to three years, with an option to renew the
lease upon expiry when all terms are renegotiated.

Certain non-cancellable operating leases in respect of
properties included above are subject to contingent rent
payments, which are charged in amounts varying from
12% to 31% (2006: 12% to 30%) of the monthly gross
takings at the leased premises in excess of the base rents
as determined in the respective lease agreements.

32 Contingent liabilities

At 31 March 2007, the Company has issued guarantees to
banks to secure banking facilities of subsidiaries amounting
to $87,524,000 (2006: $84,216,000). The guarantees were
issued by the Company at nil consideration. The transactions
were not at arm’s length, and it is not possible to measure
reliably the fair value of these transactions in accordance with
HKAS 39 had they been at arm’s length. Accordingly the
guarantees have not been accounted for as financial liabilities
and measured at fair value.

As at the balance sheet date, the directors do not consider to
be probable that a claim will be made against the
Company under any of the guarantees issued. The maximum
liability of the company at the balance sheet date under the
guarantees issued is the amount of banking facilities
drawn down by the relevant subsidiaries of $47,991,000 (2006:
$34,512,000).
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WBWERBEBALIXRS

B A AR B 75 TR LM R 2
SREEBSN - AEBITTIAT EAH
JET TR

(a) BRINXBERARF  HWEAQ
AkBERR ([RIIHXKER])
ETZRHRARLXNZ8E (R
RAETEEDNRIHNXKEER
AEBHZZEBRE -)MT -

33 Material related party transactions

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed
elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group entered
into the following material related party transactions.

(a) Transactions with and amounts paid to Yangtzekiang
Garment Limited, its subsidiaries and associated
companies (“Yangtzekiang Garment Group”). (Certain
directors of the Company are collectively the controlling
shareholders of both the Yangtzekiang Garment Group
and the Group):

2007 2006

$000 $000
AR m Purchases of traded products 39,805 45,287
& Sales of traded products 6,840 7,380
FERMERS Rentals payable on properties 3,906 3,907
ERNERE Management fees payable 804 800
ENRNEERE Building management fees payable 324 320

REZRRBARKERR LA
EXRGZERRGHREB LIS =

The purchases and sales of traded products and rental
transactions were, in the opinion of the directors, carried

ERE SRR B RIGERE -
BEENRMBERZITH - X%
REE - ANF  ERERATAMWET
£ B REBRBHWER - &
BERAABALREMBERZR
BRABFEBRET - RIIH
REE KA KB & - iR
AIMEREEAQ -

out on prices and terms comparable to those offered to
or by independent third parties. The management fees
were charged for administration, business strategy,
personnel, legal and company secretarial work,
accounting and management services provided. The
management fees are determined annually between the
respective parties after negotiations having regard to the
cost of services provided. Yangtzekiang Garment Group
and the Group have not entered into any management
contract in respect of the said services.

2006/07 Annual Re%ﬂ
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WEREBALXREZ (&)

(b) £2YGM Marketing Pte Limited (%2 A
AHARAETESE=ER)E
T2RSWMT -

& 7 i

Sales of traded products

33 Material related party transactions

(continued)

(b) Transactions with YGM Marketing Pte Limited which is

beneficially owned by certain directors of the Company:

2007 2006
$000 $'000
3,225 2,100

EEZR/LERMZEREE
HERBYE=-FLZFPRFZER
RARHEHEE -

(c) HEEKEERBERAR (EEE
Bl) REMB LR (DEEERE
BETZRSMT (KRR —%
EEZENARFMBRAFIZETES
R SESZERZEERBR) :

BERERZHME

Interest on loan granted

(c)

JERTIRTS B Service fee payable
FERMERS Rentals payable on properties
FEW A E

Rentals receivable on properties

The sales of traded products were, in the opinion of the
directors, carried out on prices and terms comparable
to those offered to independent third party customers.

Transactions with Hang Ten Group Holdings Limited
(*HTGH”) and its subsidiaries (“HTGH Group”). A director
of the Company and certain directors of a subsidiary of
the Company are both directors and shareholders of
HTGH:

2007 2006
$°000 $'000
1,909 1,912
146 474
- 171
124 738

REZR/AHERGZER K
HEBIE="EMSEHRHEZE
BRGNS -  EEEREEY
Bl D REITLEMERSL -

(d) i Efficient Sino Holdings Limited
(TESH)) (—EBARRAMERF]
HETEEZEH 2A7F - FFBESH
ZERER)ETZIRSWOT

BERERZHME

Interest on loan granted

(d)

The rental transactions were, in the opinion of the
directors, carried out at prices and on terms comparable
to those offered to or by independent third parties. HTGH
Group has not entered into any management contract in
respect of the said services.

Transactions with Efficient Sino Holdings Limited (“ESH”).
ESH is a company controlled by certain directors of a
subsidiary of the Company which holds a controlling
interest in ESH:

2007
$°000

2006
$000
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33

34

EXBBALIXRS (&)

(d) (#&)

HMARESHI B RBAXRE HEZT
T+tF=ZA=+—HIEFEESH
JE 1t 2 F 2.422,0007C (= B E X
F : 421,0007T) 5 2% % - ESHZ
HMRE (EIREa ZER
¥ FESHE ) JhE R & % B ESH
NEFZREMSZFEMK -

(e) R—TE+FE=A=+—HEW
(ER) BBERNBGEHIT ¢

33

Material related party transactions

(continued)

(d) (continued)

Interest payable by ESH for the year ended 31 March
2007 of $422,000 (2006: $421,000) was waived due to
the poor financial performance of ESH. The other
shareholders of ESH, all of which have granted loans to
ESH in proportion to their equity interests, have also
agreed to waive the payment of interest payable thereon
by ESH for the current year.

(e) Outstanding balances due from/(to) related companies
as at 31 March 2007:

JEL YGM Marketing Pte Limited 7%

EEEREER

JEUf ESH B R R EAT AR
RlE B EIREEE LR ME

ENRIHKEER

Amount due from YGM Marketing Pte Limited
Amount due to HTGH Group

Loan and accrued interest due from ESH

Loan and accrued interest due from HTGH Group
Amounts due to Yangtzekiang Garment Group

2007 2006
$000 $000
444 385
(318) (407)
7,799 7,746
33,954 33,725
(8,133) (4,714)

BB AR REREEE - $
BERZBANANEEE  REEE
19(e) B FT #2 55 2 B WKESH M = & 4%
REBEREERFE 28R
B Gh o

(f BEIZ2EWMBRAZRS :

AEBz2EMNBRARASETIE
PEMBRARLERmZHER
EREBERBREZBE SR
RmEEAERBEFHE -

EE®mEF

ERIBMERRAERI 2ETHRET
EEHMHRERIBE R ERLERT
BINREREFEZ2®RTN - Z2R
FAAEEERRBRE IS -

34

The outstanding balances with related companies are
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand,
except for the loans and accrued interest due from ESH
and HTGH Group, the repayment terms of which are
disclosed in note 19(a).

(f)  Transactions with non-wholly owned subsidiaries:

Sales of traded products by the Group’s wholly-owned
subsidiaries to certain non-wholly owned subsidiaries and
the related year end trade balances have been eliminated
on consolidation.

Comparative figures

Certain comparative figures in relation to “Interest in associates”
have been re-classified to “Loans to associates and accrued
interest” in conformity with the current year’s presentation,
which is considered to better reflect the nature of the balances.

2006/07 Annual Re%ﬂ
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35 & & & 5 & ¥ & 35 Accounting estimates and judgements

M EE S 14(c) ~ 15~ 2730 D RIE A
EHREME EBREE - ERDE
ERGBTIAZ A FEEZ KRR
HEBAZZEHN - Bt THBERE
ZEMEBHFEAOT

(a) /&Y AR 7 6l 1E

A IE R T R R R 2 REE
AREEA M E - ZFEEAER
iWﬂEﬁﬁJ i 3% {885 18 7T B
EREBLEQIEAUERIEE
AR ] 1’EtHﬁEa78\ o EWIRR 2 BRE
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Notes 14(c), 15, 27 and 30 contain information about the
assumptions and their risk factors relating to fair value of
investment property, intangible assets, share options granted
and financial instruments respectively. Other key areas of
estimation uncertainty are as follows:

(a) Impairment of trade receivables

If circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of trade
receivables may not be recoverable, the assets may be
considered “impaired” and an impairment loss may be
recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 “Impairment of
assets”. The carrying amounts of trade receivables are
reviewed periodically in order to assess whether the
recoverable amounts have declined below the carrying
amounts. The recoverable amount of trade receivables
is the estimated future cash flows discounted at the
current market rate of return of similar assets. The Group
uses all readily available information in determining an
amount that is a reasonable approximation of recoverable
amount.

(b) Write down of inventories

The Group performs regular reviews of the carrying
amounts of inventories with reference to aged inventories
analyses, projections of, expected future saleability of
goods and management experience and judgement.
Based on this review, a write down of inventories will be
made when the carrying amounts of inventories decline
below their estimated net realisable value. Due to
changes in customers’ preferences, actual saleability of
goods may be different from estimation and the profit
and loss account in future accounting periods could be
affected by differences in this estimation.

(c) Deferred tax assets - future benefit of tax losses

In accordance with the accounting policy set out in note
1(r), the Group has recognised deferred tax assets in
respect of cumulative tax losses as at the year end based
on management’s assessment that it is probable that
future taxable profits against which the losses can be
utilised will be available in the relevant tax jurisdiction and
entity.
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standards and interpretations issued
but not yet effective for the year ended
31 March 2007

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the
HKICPA has issued a number of amendments, new standards
and interpretations which are not yet effective for the
accounting year ended 31 March 2007 and which have not
been adopted in these financial statements.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what
the impact of these amendments, new standards and new
interpretations is expected to be in the period of initial
application. So far it has concluded that the adoption of them
is unlikely to have a significant impact on the Group’s and the
Company’s results of operations and financial position.

In addition, the following developments may result in new or
amended disclosures in the financial statements:

ERRT Effective for
ER accounting periods
BRheraE beginning on or after
i EACHE i & VLT TEZLE-F-B | Amendment to HKAS 1 Presentaton of fnancia statements; 1 January 2007
ELRE capital disclosures
FRUBatEAETE URIR #E Z55tE-A-H | HKFRS7 Financial instruments: disclosures 1 January 2007
BANEREENZ0H £eq79 ZEENE-A-H | HKFRSS Qperating segments 1 January 2009
AEERNRALARREY) | DRIEEAEY “EERERA-B | HKIFRICS Scope of HKFRS 2 1 May 2006
285 2588
FEERSRASARZES) | DAUFHSENES—| Z85EZA-B | HKIFRO)11 HKFRS 2 - Group and treasury 1 March 2007
B EEREERNRS share transactions
EERuRasRRZEe) | REESRH “EEN\E-A-8 | HKIFRI)12 Service concession arangements 1 January 2008
£
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———— Principal Subsidiaries

RZEZFF = H=+—H At 31 March 2007

THREVEEHASENEE  EELEE The following list contains only the particulars of subsidiaries which
BEATENNBRARER - REHEIIH principally affected the results, assets or liabilities of the Group.
SN FIRBERMENS AT AR - The class of shares held is ordinary unless otherwise stated.
BERAFHAZEMBAR (FERMEE All of these are controlled subsidiaries as defined under note 1(c)
1078) - WEEREENRBHREREERE - and have been consolidated into the Group financial statements.
fREEREA%
Percentage of ownership interest
ERARARRE/ | A%E2  gADA
ifisEs | ERER BE BHELT
#MAL/  Place of incorporation/ | Partculars of issued Groups  Held by k8
IR establishment and paid up / effective the  Heldbya
Mtk Name of company E4E  and operation registered capital interest  Company  subsidiary TEEE  Principal activty
ENEERLT ichel R Limited &% Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 10 100 - | BEHER  Gament whoesaing
55 admehing
22 Guy Laroche BE  HongKong HKS2,000,000 10 10 - | BIBER  Gamentwhosalng
(48 ARAT (Ching] Limed S5 wdseing
RIARERAT YGM Marketng FE  Hong Kong HK$2 100 10 - | BEBER  Gamentwholesalng
Linited 5 andweeling
YGM Feshion G Feshion B HongKong HKS2 10 100 - | BEBER  Gamentwholsalng
Limied Limited 55 admehing
RIERERAT YGM Cothing Limted &% HongKong HKS200 100 10 - HME  Gament wholesalng
YGM Marketing YGM Marketing 2 Macay OP100,000 100 10 - HKEE  Gament retaling
(Vacau) Limited (Macau) Limited
YGM Coting YGM Clothing “RERGES " Bifih Vign dands 1882 10 10 - HREE  Gament menvactuing
(Overseas) Limted (Overseas) Limited
RIER (72) YGM Cltting “AEAR  The Peaples HKS25900,000 10 - 100 AAE  Gament manvfaciuing
BRAT Donggur Linied £AE  Republc of China
EiRTIER Guengziou Yangtzekiang | ***4ZAR " The People’s RVIB500,000 100 - 0| HFHER  Gamentwiokesaing
BRAA Trading Company Linited LAB  Republcof China T andretaling
BriEs YGM Traing Compeny TURELR o The Paoples 381,000,000 00 - 100 | BEER  Gament whoksaing
RO Linied £HE  Republcof Cina 52 andretding
&2 (Lh) 8 YO Merkstng Shengha) | " FZAR * Tne Peoples US$1,000,000 10 - 100 | HEHER  Gament wholesaing
BRAT Compeny Limfed L8 Republc of China 25 andrealing
ichel René Enterprises Michel René Enterprises | " BERZHE ™ Bih Vigi I9ands 5830,000 8 68 - | BFHER  Gamentwhoesaing
Limted Limited 55 admetng
Luk Hop Garments Luk Hop Garments E5 HongKong iS00 10 100 - NERE  Poperty inestent
Limited # Limted # “HKS1,000 100 100 -
Chenza Ridge Limied # Chenza Ridge Limited 4 EE  Hong Kong HK$20 10 10 - MERE  Property Investment
) 100 100 -
Squesh ntematond Souash nemetione &% HongKong Hi$2 10 10 - MERE  Property Ivestment
Limited # Limited #
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Principal Subsidiaries
RZ-_FEL = =+—H At 31 March 2007

fRRRERA%
Percentage of ownership interest
ERARERRE/ L VA
AfiaEs EREs FE ANENA
AL/ Place of incorporation/ | Particulas of issued Groups ~ Held by 2}
HIR  establishment and paid up / ffective the  Heldbya
Mt Name of company 2248 and operation tegistered capita interest ~ Company  subsidiary TEER  Principal activty
Aramis ntemetionel Aramis ntemetionel EE  Hongkong HKS20 100 10 - MERE  Propety vestment
Limted # Limied # * HKS100,000 10 100 -
ZAREERLA Y Far East Gate Limteg # E5 HongKong HKS5 500,000 i g - MERE Propery ivestment
FREERATY Parahood Limited 4 EE  Hongkong HKS5,000 ] Gl - MERE  Propety vestment
Tty Company Teothy Company BE  Hongkong HS10,000 100 100 - MERE  Propety ivestment
Limted # Limted #
YGH Printing nc YGH Prining Inc RERTHE  Bilsh Vg Igends USst 100 10 - SEEE  Ivesiment holding
Yampa Ivestments Yampa Ivestments BE  Hongkong HKS1,000 100 10 - MERE  Propety ivestment
Limted # Limted #
et Hong Kong Securty &% Hongkong HeS2 00 10 - FERR vestment holdng
ERDA Systems Limteg #
e Hong Kong Securty EE  Hongkong HKS10,000 100 - 100 OB Provson of seourty
BRAT4 Printng Limi # L pining and generel
HiEE business forms
printing
Socété Guy Laroche #— Socité Gy Laroche # 8 Fance EUR1 233,000 100 - 10 BER  Tacemark ownership
i and eensig, and
Roizas qament uholesang
M Stuo Limied M Stuo Lt BE  Hongkong HK$21,080,000 100 - 10 REER  vestment holding
" HKS46,800,000 10 - 100
YGH Consortum YGM Consortum EE  HongKong HS2 10 100 - SEBE  Ivesiment holding
Limited Limited
G Furopa SA GL Europa SA. {HE  Belgum EURG200 100 - 10 AEEE  Ivesiment holding
FIEEBETRAYAEBRBROIEMMRE - BUTEIERI
: A5%MW R EREIERD -
b AERZEELER -
All the issued share capital represents ordinary shares or registered capital except where noted by:
* Represent 5% non-voting deferred shares.
Represent non-voting preference shares.
AN AT RE -
In addition, the following represents:
YGM Clothing (Overseas) Limited 7 /7 B 4% ‘& % 1§ o
e YGM Clothing (Overseas) Limited operates in the PRC.
o R A & 4 & H9 Michel René Enterprises Limited ©
e Michel René Enterprises Limited operates in Taiwan.
***** U E AR AREREEEHOEE -
***** These are entities established under the laws of the PRC.
# EYFHEEREAMEEIERNDLA RS ELCE2EH NN EEMBER I HBRARMBREARREEELRRBLEE
BMORNEBEBZEARTER16.37%510.72% °
# Companies not audited by KPMG. The financial statements of the subsidiaries not audited by KPMG reflect total net assets and total turnover

constituting approximately 16.37% and 10.72% respectively of the related consolidated totals.
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Principal Associates

RZEZFF = H=+—H At 31 March 2007

TREINHHAEENEEXINEEFERKN The following list contains only the particulars of associates, which
FEZHBMEQNRER principally affected the results or assets of the Group:
it 1t

Proportion of ownership interest

1582 290
ERfR&RER | RRER #8

Form of Particulars Group’s Held by
EHBE  business Place of ofissuedand | effective the
HenasE Name of associate B stucture HRALHE  incomoration paic up capita interest Company TEER  Principal activity
PEEDI Hang Ten Group Holdngs | SR oorporated EZE Bumua 98,225,000 2048 2048 RESE  vestment hoding
RAA Limed"
Hang Ten (V) Hang Ten BV) SRR hoopoaed | BEEZEZ  BitshVigh U103 821 2048 - RERE  Ivestment hoding
Islands
Lo 16 HRAT hopoaed | EBRZES Bt Vign 1S3630,830 048 - REER  Investment holdng
Islands
Hang TnEnterprses Heng TenEterpises | ERALL  Icoorted | RBRAEE  Bitish Vigh US850,000 048 - | REARR  Investment holdng
Linited Limied I AREE  anduhoesdeof
apparel
RIEES) Vangize Apoarel Tavan | ERALL ooporated SE Tawn AT$100,000,000 048 - HXEE  Relaland wholesale
ERLA Entepise Limfed Rit of appare
Hang Ten Phis, Comy~ Hang Ten Pis, Cop | &R hoorporated EBZ  Philopines PHP30,000,000 1126 - AKEE  Retaland wholesdle

ik of appare

Heng Ten Enteprses~ Hang Ten Erteprses | &9 noorporate s Sngapore §6D1,000,000 048 - HKEE  Retal and wholesdle
Pt Lid Pt Lid ks of appare
Hang Ten Korea Corp.~ Hang TenKorea Comp. | &AL Incomporate B3 Koea KRN 000,000,000 048 - XEE  Retal and wholesdle

RS of apparel
Hang Teng Enterprises  Hang Teng Enteprses | AT Incomporated ENED  Malaysa RM300,000 048 - HXEE  Retal and wholesdle
(M) Sdn Bhd (M) Sdn Bhd RitE of appare
ILC Trademark ILC Trademark SRR hoopoaed | REEREZ  BishVigh US$50,000 2048 - | BERET  Trademark ownershp
Corporaion Corporaion Islnds foREe and eensig
LG [Hungany Limted .G [Hungany) Limted | #RHT ~ Incorporated W Hungary (36,400 048 - | AUERBE  Tademarkfcensng
HTIL Corporaton, BY. ~ HTIL Corporaton, BY. | 3T ncorporated A TheNethorands NLG40,000 2048 - | FURREE  Tcemarkloensing
Iteratonal Lioensing  InternatonalLioensing | AL Incomorated 28 Unted States US810,000 048 - | HURAR  Tademarkfcensng
(Calforna) Cop~~~~ (Calforia)Corp of America BEEE  and menagenent
Eficent Sno Holdings ~ Effcient SioHoldings | ST ncomorated | RBRAEE  Bitish Vign USS100 % % HERR  Ivestment haldng
Limied Limied Islands
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Principal Associates

RZFEZFLF = H=+—H At 31 March 2007

i Libes

Proportion of ownership inferest

LY 290

BRARARRE | ENER k&
Form of Particulars Group's Held by
EHEE  business Place of ofissuedand | effective the
Be0aeE Name of associate | F/3t suctre | SRALEE  incorporation paid up capitl interest Company TEER  Principal actvty
HngTen(Chine) ~ HengTen(Chingl | MR icomorted | ZERAEE  Bitish Vg Isands US$20,000 i - FEER  Invesiment holoing
Group Limfted Group Limited
LhRERS Changmao Tadng | EMHL  Incorporated REAR  ThePeopls RIB300,000 % - KEER  Retal and uholesale
BRAR" Limeg £E  Repbicof China & ol
BIT2225  HagTenGuangho | AT incorporated HEAR  ThePeoples RMBS00,000 i - HXBER  Retal and uholesde
ERAF" Trading Limted™ £AE  Republcof China #E ofappard
Chilimvestment —— Onl vestment AT copoeted | ZERRES  Bih Vighdands USS100 2 2 RERR  Investment holoing
Limied Limied
BE-NEREE  HoanSmJulad | SRR incorporated BEAR  ThePeoples RMBY,3%0,000 2 - | BEEREE  Manacuingand
ERAA" Phamaceutical AAE Republcof China RAE  dstioutionof
Gompany Limited™ Chinese
Phamaceutical
products

ZERAABREBEPEEFTMcES -
These are entities established under the laws of the PRC.

AT SRR ERRBRIAETHRAN U EHRIFLETRAEE -

All of the above are unlisted corporate entities except for where noted by *, which is a company listed on SEHK.
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(WA % 8 21| )R~ Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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Mt 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007
Note $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $000
ES Results
| Turnover 652,000 727,735 958,696 1,032,188 1,022,818
Fedpnyl Profit from operations 1,8 74,035 108,330 147,356 162,199 120,171
BEMAK Finance costs (906) (1,368) (1,763) (4,366) (6,992)
e A=NG| Share of profits less losses
B RE R of associates 2 16,726 18,528 22,422 32,140 21,252
JEEEME IS, Non-operating income/
(i) 558 (expense), net (2,319 64,957 - (453) -
B 158 A ) Profit before taxation 87,536 190,447 168,015 189,520 134,431
A Taxation 2,3 (12,112) (15,371) (23,496) (24,071) (14,387)
KEERF Profit for the year 75,424 175,076 144,519 165,449 120,044
B Attributable to:
RATIERRE Equity shareholders of
the company 73,563 171,187 137,813 161,913 118,121
DE R Minority interests 1,861 3,889 6,706 3,536 1,923
RE R Profit for the year 75,424 175,076 144,519 165,449 120,044
EEREE Assets and liabilities
EEEE Fixed assets 183,508 166,518 182,629 209,462 223,108
B EE Intangible assets - - 110,904 110,124 109,344
HEEER Lease premium - - 9,595 8,927 9,912
BN TR Interest in associates 70,586 95,565 70,622 85,317 96,864
HimB i & E Other financial assets 15,327 7,528 51,183 43,175 42,893
RRERIAE E Deferred tax assets 19,290 21,282 45,629 50,047 57,204
FREEE Net current assets 188,615 203,014 149,515 266,970 270,956
477,326 498,907 620,077 774,022 810,281
FRBEE Non-current liabilities 3 (8,173) (8,682) (13,004) (73,372) (63,027)
FEE Net assets 469,153 485,225 607,073 700,650 747,254
BRER Earnings per share
B Basic $0.48 $1.11 $0.89 $1.05 $0.77
#E Diluted N/A N/A $0.88 $1.04 N/A
BERERE Dividend per share $2.85 $0.33 $0.43 $0.45 $0.45
HEM BN Notes to the five year summary:
©) Q ZERFNMA—HRL  AEEBAFESE U KRS L] (1) In order to comply with HKFRS 2 Share-based payment the Group adopted a new accounting policy
Fo5 R ThiE % [:):4 &fg RN —TEF S HE - B for employee share options with effect from 1 April 2005. Under the new policy, the Group recognises
%8 %ﬁ BE - A&EH SHEREZALBEASE X the fair value of such share options as an expense with a corresponding increase recognised in a capital
RIEZANE AR EHTR ‘Z N o ARE&E B IE W E MBI reserve within equity. The new policy was applied retrospectively. No adjustments to the opening

BHBR - ARE"TTNENA — B MERE - WEA
J;:%EIZ%@%M*RM‘EEHM%

balances as at 1 April 2004 were required as no options existed at that time.

RBAEFE  FABZZREE AESBEEBYEARBIE - )] In prior years, the Group’s share of taxation of associates accounted for using the equity method
TEt ARG EBERAN - EAXEERE %R 2 —# 173 cHZTE was included as part of the Group’s income tax in the consolidated profit and loss account. With
THEMNA—BE  RESESHLUEIR 2 EEES - effect from 1 April 2005, in accordance with the implementation guidance in HKAS 1, the Group
AEBEEREZEZ2M A - ]Ui ERAKERBAER - 8 changed the presentation and includes the share of taxation of associates accounted for using the
ERE S AR (R /3 AIFIE - MAREEER % W equity method in the respective shares of profit or loss reported in the consolidated profit and loss
2Rz saEhE E"-F ZELBREPEEYER - account before arriving at the Group’s profit or loss before tax. These changes in presentation
THNEZRENZHTR ﬁ T FA 2 st LUl @( have been applied retrospectively. Figures in years earlier than 2004 are stated in accordance with

— B - the policies before the change on a consistent basis.
3) In order to comply with HKAS 40, Investment property and HK(SIC) Interpretation 21, Income

BE-ZTRENA—HE AHEEBRAEUFORLE

L& TEENS — Arigh — KB E
GTANERE AEBERAMLANEREERIEL A
ABEEEHGHRE - REZFEUZBERY - 2HO
BYER - —ETNEZHEFNO2BTREZESH A2 &

taxes — Recovery of revalued non-depreciable assets, the Group changed its accounting policies
relating to movements in the fair value of investment property and deferred tax thereon with effect
from 1 April 2005. In accordance with the transitional provisions of the standards, the changes
have been applied retrospectively. Figures in years earlier than 2004 are stated in accordance with
the policies before the change on a consistent basis.
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